
           
  

 
City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers

1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, November 4, 2024
5:00 p.m.

Mayor
Joe Pizzillo

_______________

Vice Mayor
Laura Kaino

_______________

Councilmember
Sheri Lauritano

_______________

Councilmember
Wally Campbell

_______________

Councilmember
Bill Stipp

_______________

Councilmember
Brannon Hampton
_______________

Councilmember
Vicki Gillis

_______________

CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR
Please complete a speaker card and submit it to the City Clerk prior to the meeting
being convened, if possible. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Once the
City Clerk has called your name, step up to the lectern and begin by clearly stating
your name for the record and whether you are a Goodyear resident.

NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any non-agenda item
within the jurisdiction of the City Council. The City Council will listen to comments and
may take any of the following actions:

Respond to criticism.
Request that staff investigate and report on the matter.
Request that the matter be scheduled on a future agenda.

AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any item on the
Consent, Public Hearing and/or Business portions of the agenda. Each speaker's
name will be called in turn once the item has been reached and after City staff have
completed their presentation.

PROCEDURES
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
Goodyear City Council and to the general public that the Council of the city of
Goodyear will hold a meeting open to the public. Public body members of the city of
Goodyear will attend either in person or by telephone conference call and/or video
communication. The Goodyear City Council may vote to go into Executive Session,
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3), which will not be open to the public, to discuss
certain matters. Meetings are conducted in accordance with the City Council Meetings
Council Rules of Procedure adopted by Resolution No.2018-1879.
  

City Clerk’s Office: 1900 N. Civic Square, Goodyear, AZ 85395 (623) 882-7830
www.goodyearaz.gov/cityclerk 
City Council Meeting Live Broadcast: https://www.facebook.com/goodyearazgov/videos



Monday, November 4, 2024 5:00 p.m. Meeting Agenda

           
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY VICE MAYOR KAINO
 

COMMUNICATIONS
 

1. NASCAR CHAMPIONSHIP WEEKEND RECOGNITION PROCLAMATION  
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 

CONSENT

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the October 28, 2024 Regular Meeting draft minutes. (Darcie McCracken,

City Clerk)
 
3. APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

ELIXIR BAR & RESTAURANT
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Recommend approval of Application No. 304029 to the Arizona Department of

Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Jennifer Lynn Tafoya has submitted
this application for a New Series 12 liquor license for Elixir Bar and Restaurant, which
is located at 633 S Estrella Parkway #105, Goodyear, Arizona 85338.
(Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

 
4. APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE

FOR RUBIO'S FRESH MEXICAN GRILL #225
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Recommend approval of Application No. 308092 to the Arizona Department of Liquor

Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Theresa June Morse has submitted this
application for a New Series 12 liquor license for Rubio's Fresh Mexican Grill #225,
which is located at 15479 W McDowell Rd. Suite 101, Goodyear, Arizona 85338.
(Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

 



5. AUTHORIZATION OF THE EXPENDITURE OF CONSTRUCTION FUNDS FOR
APPROVED CIP PROJECT #60075 – BULLARD WATER CAMPUS PRE-FILTER
REPLACEMENT

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Authorize the expenditure of construction funds up to $690,000 for Capital

Improvement Program (CIP) Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter
Replacement. (Anthony Dudley, Acting Water Services Director).  

 
6. ANNUAL ASSESSMENT FOR INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA)

WITH MARICOPA COUNTY DEPTARTMENT OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the expenditure of annual assessment payment for the IGA with Maricopa County

Department of Emergency Management. (Brian Woodard, Emergency Manager)
 
7. APPROVE RESOLUTION REFERRING CITY CHARTER AMENDMENTS TO THE

VOTERS
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2430 REFERRING QUESTIONS TO BE

SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR WITH
RESPECT TO AMENDMENTS TO THE GOODYEAR CITY CHARTER, SAID
QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT A CITY SPECIAL
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025. (Roric Massey, City Attorney)
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS

The following actions will take place for each public hearing item: 

A. Open the Public Hearing
B. Staff Presentation
C. Applicant Presentation (if applicable)
D. Receive Public Comment
E. Close the Public Hearing

 

8. ANNEXATION OF TWO PROPERTIES SOUTH OF W LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD
FOR STREAM DATA CENTER (SDC I AND SDC II)

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  1. ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1619, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY,
STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4,
ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY
ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY .558 ACRES OF PROPERTY ALONG SOUTH
LITCHFIELD ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS
CONTIGUOUS TO AND SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE
CITY OF GOODYEAR, PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG
AGRICULTURAL; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY



CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY.

2. ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1620, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY,
STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4,
ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY
ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 3.342 ACRES OF PROPERTY ALONG SOUTH
LITCHFIELD ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS
CONTIGUOUS TO AND SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE
CITY OF GOODYEAR, PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG
AGRICULTURAL; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY
CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY.
(Guadalupe Ortiz Cortez, Senior Planner)

 

BUSINESS

 

9. APPROVAL OF A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH EPCOR WATER ARIZONA
INC. FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD MAY 20, 2025

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2431 APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR AND EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND PLACING THE APPROVAL OF THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT OF A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE
HELD ON MAY 20, 2025, THAT GRANTS EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE TO
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE
PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE
ADDITIONS THERETO, WATER DELIVERY AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION
SYSTEMS WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
SUPPLYING WATER AND COLLECTING WASTEWATER TO THE CITY, ITS
SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, AND PERSONS AND
CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE LIMITS THEREOF, FOR ALL
PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, TERMS AND
CONDITIONS IN RESPECT THERETO. (Roric Massey, City Attorney)

 
10. APPROVAL OF A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH LIBERTY UTILITIES

(LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP. FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION
TO BE HELD MAY 20, 2025

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2432 APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR AND LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD
PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND
PLACING THE APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT
OF A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025 THAT GRANTS
LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS



SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE TO
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE
PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE
ADDITIONS THERETO, WATER DELIVERY AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION
SYSTEMS WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
SUPPLYING WATER AND COLLECTING WASTEWATER TO THE CITY, ITS
SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, AND PERSONS AND
CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE LIMITS THEREOF, FOR ALL
PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, TERMS AND
CONDITIONS IN RESPECT THERETO. (Roric Massey, City Attorney) 

 
11. CALL OF SPECIAL ELECTION - MAY 20, 2025  
  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2427 CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR MAY

20, 2025; PROVIDING NOTICE OF A SPECIAL ELECTION; DESIGNATING THE
DATE THAT VOTER REGISTRATION CLOSES; DESIGNATING THE PLACE AND
BEGINNING AND ENDING DATES TO ACCEPT ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST
THE QUESTIONS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO
ENTER INTO ALL AGREEMENTS TO EFFECTUATE ELECTION SERVICES; AND
ORDERING THE CITY CLERK TO PUBLISH THE NOTICE OF ELECTION.  (Darcie
McCracken, City Clerk)

 

INFORMATION ITEMS
 

Comments, commendations, report on current events and presentations by Mayor,
Councilmembers, staff or members of the public. The Council may not propose, discuss,
deliberate or take any legal action on the information presented, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02.
 

Reports from the Mayor and City Council
This may include current events and activities as well as requests for information or
future agenda items.

Report from the City Manager
This may include updates from events, staff summary, update of legislative issues,
clarification on items being requested by City Council and Manager's update on
Council Related Matters.

 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:

 
November 18, 2024 Council Meeting 5:00 p.m.

 

ADJOURNMENT

 



THE CITY OF GOODYEAR ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE
TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. With 48-hour advance notice, special assistance can be
provided for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons at this meeting. Reasonable
accommodations will be made upon request for persons with disabilities or non-English
speaking residents. Please call the City Clerk (623) 882-7830 or Arizona Relay (TDD) 7-1-1 to
request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting.

For Non-English assistance please contact the City Clerk at (623) 882-7830.

Si necesita asistencia o traducción en español, favor de llamar al menos 48 horas antes de la
reunión al  (623) 882-7830.

POSTING VERIFICATION
This agenda was posted on 10/30/2024 at 5:03 p.m. by VM.



ITEM #: 1. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2327

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION
 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Mayor Pizzillo

SUBJECT:
NASCAR CHAMPIONSHIP WEEKEND RECOGNITION PROCLAMATION 



ITEM #: 2. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2333

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

SUBJECT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the October 28, 2024 Regular Meeting draft minutes. (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

Attachments
October 28, 2024 Draft Regular Meeting minutes 



City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers
1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, October 28, 2024 5:00 p.m. Meeting Minutes

               
CALL TO ORDER
 
  Mayor Pizzillo called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
 
ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Joe Pizzillo; Vice Mayor Laura Kaino; Councilmember Sheri Lauritano; 

Councilmember Bill Stipp; Councilmember Brannon Hampton; Councilmember 
Vicki Gillis

Absent: Councilmember Wally Campbell

Staff
Present:

City Manager Wynette Reed; City Attorney Roric Massey; City Clerk Darcie
McCracken 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, SECONDED BY Councilmember Bill 
Stipp to EXCUSE Councilmember Campbell. The motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember Brannon Hampton, 
Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY MAYOR PIZZILLO
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 
  Karen Kinney, Goodyear resident and Mobile Elementary School District President,

thanked the city for helping to secure a grant and expressed concerns with comments
made during a meeting at the school in July. 

Dennis Hudson, Goodyear resident, provided an update on recent conversations
regarding the Mobile community. 

 

CONSENT

 
  MOTION BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, SECONDED BY Councilmember Sheri 

1 



  MOTION BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, SECONDED BY Councilmember Sheri 
Lauritano to APPROVE Consent Agenda items 1 through 6. The motion carried as
follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember Brannon Hampton, 
Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve the October 7, 2024, Regular Meeting draft minutes. (Darcie McCracken, City
Clerk)
 

  

 
2. APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS & RELATED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY

 
RECOMMENDATION
Approve budget amendments and related expenditure authority. (Ryan Bittle, Finance
Manager)

  

 
3. AUTHORIZATION OF THE EXPENDITURE OF CONSTRUCTION FUNDS FOR

APPROVED CIP PROJECT #42061 – TRAFFIC SIGNAL 152ND AVENUE AND VAN
BUREN STREET
 
RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the expenditure of construction funds up to $1,396,700 for Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) Project #42061 – Traffic Signal 152nd Avenue and Van Buren Street.
(Steve Scinto, Director of Engineering)

  

 
4. VACATE A PORTION OF EL CIELO ROAD AND TERMINATE ADJACENT PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2428 DECLARING SECTIONS OF EL CIELO
UNNECESSARY FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY, VACATING SUCH SECTIONS OF EL
CIELO, AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS
ADJACENT TO THE SECTION OF EL CIELO BEING VACATED, PROVIDING FOR THE
RECORDATION OF THE RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATES
OF THE ABANDONMENT AND THE RESOLUTION. (Colton Blyle, Real Estate Specialist)

  

 
5. VACATE A PORTION OF S. 143RD AVENUE AND TERMINATE ADJACENT PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2429 DECLARING SECTIONS OF S. 143RD AVENUE
UNNECESSARY FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY, VACATING SUCH SECTIONS OF S. 143RD
AVENUE, AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS ADJACENT
TO THE SECTION OF S. 143RD AVENUE BEING VACATED, PROVIDING FOR THE
RECORDATION OF THE RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATES OF
THE ABANDONMENT AND THE RESOLUTION. (Colton Blyle, Real Estate Specialist)

  

 
6. FINAL PLAT OF ASCENT AT CANYON TRAILS   

2 



6. FINAL PLAT OF ASCENT AT CANYON TRAILS
 
RECOMMENDATION
Conditionally approve the Final Plat of Ascent at Canyon Trails, subdividing approximately 
7.84 acres into 113 lots and 7 tracts, subject to stipulations. (Marty Crossland, Deputy
Director of Development Engineering)

  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS

 
7. USE PERMIT FOR A DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT (PANDA EXPRESS)   
 
  Mayor Pizzillo opened the Public Hearing at 5:09 p.m.

Principal Planner Ann Dolmage reviewed the request for a use permit on a parcel within
the Cottonflower Marketplace commercial center, explaining that a use permit is required
due to the proximity of drive-through lanes to the nearby residential district. Ms. Dolmage
discussed the plaza’s ingress and egress, as well as the project's compliance with
parking and drive-through queuing standards, confirming that the design aligns with area
guidelines and is compatible with nearby commercial uses. She highlighted impacts to
the project with the upcoming Loop 303 extension, including an Arizona Department of
Transportation (ADOT) aesthetic design study and the addition of sound walls. She
concluded that a neighborhood meeting was held on March 20, 2024, and the use permit
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on October 16, 2024.

There being no public comments, Mayor Pizzillo closed the Public Hearing at 5:15 p.m.

Council requested an update from ADOT regarding the design plans for Loop 303.
Council also discussed possible concerns with the Loop 303 design, referencing the
westbound ingress and egress for the plaza and its effects on the east side of Cotton
Lane. 

 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Vicki Gillis, SECONDED BY Councilmember Bill 
Stipp to APPROVE the request for a Use Permit for a convenience use
(drive-through restaurant) within five hundred (500) feet of a residential zoning
district, on an approximately 1.2-acre parcel located at the southwest corner of
Yuma Road and Cotton Lane (proposed Loop 303) zoned Planned Area
Development (PAD), subject to stipulations. The motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember Brannon Hampton, 
Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 

BUSINESS

 
8. ADOPTION OF TRAFFIC SIGNAL CAMERA OPERATION AND RECORDING POLICY   
 
  Director of Engineering Steve Scinto presented the traffic camera recording policy

3 



  Director of Engineering Steve Scinto presented the traffic camera recording policy
highlighting regulations on camera usage, video access and retention procedures. He
clarified that no additional cameras need to be purchased and that, if the policy is
adopted by Council, project implementation is projected to begin in November.

Council discussed the video recording retention period, costs associated with the video
recordings and procedures for authorized use. Council also clarified that the video
recordings are for public right-of-way and are separate from License Plate Reader
equipment, expressing support for providing this resource to staff and the police
department.

In response to Council inquiry, City Manager Wynette Reed explained that staff is still
evaluating a Real Time Crime Center and once it is complete, staff will bring the
information back to Council at a future date. 

 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Brannon Hampton, SECONDED BY Councilmember 
Sheri Lauritano to ADOPT the proposed Traffic Signal Camera Operation and
Recording Policy. The motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember Brannon Hampton, 
Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
9. COMBINE CIP PROJECTS RELATED TO ROADWAY, INTERSECTION AND TRAFFIC

SIGNAL IMPROVEMENTS ALONG YUMA ROAD AND ASSOCIATED BUDGET
AMENDMENT

  

 
  Director of Engineering Steve Scinto presented the request to combine the traffic signal

installation at 165th Avenue and Yuma Road with roadway improvements along Yuma
Road, from Canyon Trails to Sarival Road, into one project. Mr. Scinto explained that
staff is requesting a budget amendment of $3 million to cover the increase in
construction costs, relocation of Roosevelt Irrigation District (RID) pipe and expenses
related to the acquisition of the additional right-of-way. 

Council discussed the scope of the project, and requested information on cost-sharing
agreements or in-lieu fee payments for this project. 

 

  MOTION BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, SECONDED BY Councilmember Brannon 
Hampton to AUTHORIZE combining CIP Project #42037 Yuma Road Canyon Trails to
Sarival and CIP Project #42062 Traffic Signal 165th Avenue and Yuma into one
project (CIP #42037), and to approve a budget amendment of $3,000,000 and the
expenditure of construction funds up to $9,213,800 for the combined CIP Project
#42037 – Yuma Road, Canyon Trails to Sarival. The motion carried as follows: 

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember Brannon Hampton, 
Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS

4 



 
Council commented on Goodyear's Fall Festival held on October 26, and highlighted the new
surgical robot at Abrazo West. Council also requested information regarding a "spitting ordinance".

City Manager Wynette Reed provided an update on the Make A Difference Day event that brought
together over 300 volunteers, as well as Goodyear's Fall Festival, which attracted over 7,500
attendees. 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:

 
November 4, 2024 Council Meeting 5:00 p.m.

 

ADJOURNMENT

 
There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Pizzillo adjourned the Regular Meeting at 5:56 p.m.

  
__________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

__________________________
Joe Pizzillo, Mayor

Date:___________________
 

  

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the CITY
COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, held on October 28, 2024.  I further
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ____ day of ______________, 2024.                            SEAL:

_____________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

5 



ITEM #: 3. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2268

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

ELIXIR BAR & RESTAURANT
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Jennifer Lynn Tafoya, Agent

SUMMARY
The applicant is requesting a recommendation of approval for a New Series 12 (Restaurant)
liquor license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

    

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of Application No. 304029 to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses
and Control (DLLC). Agent Jennifer Lynn Tafoya has submitted this application for a New
Series 12 liquor license for Elixir Bar and Restaurant, which is located at 633 S Estrella
Parkway #105, Goodyear, Arizona 85338. (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

FISCAL IMPACT
The applicant paid the $635 application fee for the liquor license per the Goodyear
Municipal User Fee Schedule. The business will also contribute to the tax base of the
community.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A new Series 12 liquor license application was submitted by Ms. Tafoya on behalf of Elixir Bar
and Restaurant. The establishment is presently operating under an interim permit that was
issued by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). A license applicant
is granted an interim permit, which is a provisional authorization issued pursuant to A.R.S
§4-203.01. This authorization permits the sale of spirituous liquor to continue while
the application is pending. Existing licenses must be of the same series and location as



the pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify.

The City Clerk's office received the application from the DLLC on September 11th, 2024, and
the Public Hearing notice was posted on September 26th, 2024, to comply with  Arizona
Revised Statute §4-201(b). No petitions or protests from qualified persons were received
during the comment period. The application was routed for approval to the Police Department
and the Development Services Department (Code Compliance and Planning & Zoning), and
the departments had no comments.

STAFF ANALYSIS
A Series 12 license is for a restaurant and is non-transferrable. This on-sale retail privileges
liquor license allows the holder to sell and serve all types of spirituous liquor solely
for consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent
(40%) of its gross revenue from the sale of food. 

DLLC requires license owners, agents, and managers actively involved in the
day-to-day operations of the business to complete a state-approved management training
course prior to the issuance of a liquor license. The owner has completed the Title 4 Basic &
Management training. Managers and staff will monitor guest alcohol consumption through the
licensed premises. The restaurant's policy is to require a valid ID for anyone who appears to
be under the legal drinking age.

There are no licensed childcare facilities or K-12 schools within 300 feet of the location
to comply with Arizona Revised Statutes §4-207. City Council's recommendation of
"Approval", "Disapproval" or "No Recommendation" will be forwarded to the DLLC for
consideration during their licensing review process.

Attachments
DLLC Local Governing Body Report 
One Mile Report and Evaluation Map 



State of Arizona 

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control 

Number: 
Name: 
State: 

Issue Date: 

Original Issue Date: 
Location: 

Mailing Address: 
Phone: 
Alt. Phone: 
Email: 

Name: 
Gender: 

Created 09/11/2024 @ 11 :48:37 AM 

Local Governing Body Report 

LICENSE 

Type: 
ELIXIR BAR AND RESTAURANT 
Pending 

633 S ESTRELLA PARKWAY 
#105 
GOODYEAR, AZ 85338 
USA 

( 623 )703-6909 

JENNIFER@ELJXlRAZ.COM 

Expiration Date: 

AGENT 

JENNIFER L YNN TAFOYA 
Female 

Conespondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 

Phone: 
Alt. Phone: 
Email: 

Name: 
Contact Name: 
Type: 

USA 
(602)290-9956

JENNTFER(i-i ELIXIRAZ.COM 

OWNER 

TAFOYAGEN.LLC 
JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

012 RESTAURANT 

AZ CC File Number: 23689101 State of Incorporation: AZ 
Incorporation Date: 06/12.2024 
CoITespondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 

-�UCKEY� .-Az-8-5320- -

Phone: 
Alt. Phone: 
Email: 

Officrrs / Stockholders

Name: 

USA 

(602)290-9956

.I ENNIFERri1 ELIXIRAZ.COM 

Title: 

Page 1 of4 

'!;, Interest: 



TIMOTHY NICHOLAS TAFOYA 

JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 

BLAINE THOMAS RICHARDSON 

DEVIN JAY RENNER 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC-Member 
Name: JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 

Gender: Female 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: 

(602)290-9956

JENNIFER@ELIXIAZ.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC - Member 
Name: BLAINE THOMAS RICHARDSON 

Gender: Male 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (623)256-0048

Alt. Phone: 

Email: BLAINETRICHARDSON@GMAIL.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC -Member 
Name: TIMOTHY NICHOLAS TAFOYA 

Gender: Male 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (602)290-9956

Alt. Phone: 

Email: KID.DYNAMlTE27@GMAIL.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC-Member 
Name: DEVIN .IA Y RENNER 

Gender: Male 

Conespondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (70 l )870-2525 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: RENNER25@ICLOUD.COM 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicalion Number: 304029 

Applicalion Type: New Applicalion 

Page 2 of4 

41.00 

41.00 

10.00 

8.00 







State of Arizona 

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control 

Number: 

Name: 

State: 

Issue Date: 

Original Issue Date: 

Location: 

Mailing Address: 

Phone: 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: 

Name: 

Gender: 

Created 09/11/2024@ 11:49: 10 AM 

Local Governing Body Report 

LICENSE 

INP070029754 Type: 

ELIXIR BAR AND RESTAURANT 

Active 

09/11/2024 

09/11/2024 

633 S ESTRELLA PARKWAY 
#105 
GOODYEAR, AZ 85338 
USA 

( 623)703-6909

JENNIFER@ELIXIRAZ.COM 

Expiration Date: 

AGENT 

JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 

Female 

C01Tespondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 

Phone: 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: 

Name: 

Contact Name: 

Type: 

USA 

(602)290-9956

JENNTFER@ELTXTRAZ.COM 

OWNER 

T AFOY AGEN, LLC 

JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INP INTERIM P ERMIT 

12/25/2024 

AZ CC File Number: 23689101 State of Incorporation: AZ 

Incorporation 03te: 06/12/2024 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEY:. Z 8:i' '16

Phone: 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: 

Officers/ Stockholders 

Name: 

USA

( 602)290-9956

.I ENN I FER@ELIXIRAZ.COM 

Title: 

Page I of 3 

%, Interest: 



TIMOTHY NICHOLAS TAFOYA 

JENNlFER LYNN TAFOYA 

BLAINE THOMAS RICHARDSON 

DEVIN JAY RENNER 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC - Member 
Name: JENNIFER LYNN TAFOYA 

Gender: Female 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (602)290-9956

Alt. Phone: 

Email: JENNIFER@ELIXlAZ.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC - Member 
Name: BLAINE THOMAS RICHARDSON 

Gender: Male 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (623)256-0048

Alt. Phone: 

Email: BLAINETRICHARDSON@GMAIL.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC - Member 
Name: TIMOTHY NICHOLAS TAFOYA 

Gender: Male 

Correspondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (602)290-9956

Alt. Phone: 

Email: KlD.DYNAMITE27@GMAlL.COM 

TAFOYAGEN, LLC- Member 
Name: DEVIN JAY RENNER 

Gender: Male 

C01Tespondence Address: 19658 W HARRISON STREET 
BUCKEYE, AZ 85326 
USA 

Phone: (70 I )870-2525 

Alt. Phone: 

Email: RENNER25@1CLOUD.COM 

Page 2 of3 

41.00 

41.00 

10.00 

8.00 



Application Number: 
Application Type: 
Created Date: 

INP Interim Permit 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 

304040 
New Application 
08/01/2024 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

1) Enter License Number cmTently at location

2) Is the license currently in use?

3) Will you please submit section 5, page 6, of the license application when you reach the upload page?

Page 3 of3 







































-.-: ... , :.. q: Li qv � ti:-?\ ?/ 2 · ;;�f
EVI DENCE OF U.S. CITIZENSHIP. U.S. NATIONAL STATUS, OR ALIEN-STATUS 

You must submit supporting legol documentation (i.e. marriage certificate) if the name on your evidence 
is not the same as your current legal name. 

Evidence showing authorized presence in the United State includes the following: 

l. An Arizona driver license issued after 1996 or an Arizona non-operating identification card.

2. A driver license issued by a state that verifies lawful presence in the United States.

3. A birth certificate or delayed birth certificate showing birth in one of the 50 states, the District. of
Columbia, Puerto Rico (on or after Jan. 13, 1941 ), Guam, the U.S. Virgin Islands (on or after January 17,
1917), American Samoa, or the Northern Mariana Islands (on or after November 4, 1986, Northern
Mariana Islands local time)

4. A United States certificate of birth abroad.

5. A United States passport. ***Passport must be signed***

6. A foreign passport with a United States visa.

7. An 1:..94 form with a photograph.

8. A United States citizenship and immigration services employment authorization document or

refugee travel document.

9. A United States certificate of naturalization.

l 0. A United States certificate of citizenship.

l l. A tribal certificate of Indian blood.

12. A tribal or bureau of Indian affairs affidavit of birth.

13. Any other licen?� thqt i� issue_d by the federal government. any other state govemment. an agenq1_of _ .

this state or a political subdivision of this state that requires proof of citizenship or lawful alien status

before issuing the license.

7/21/2022 Page 2 of 3 
Individuals requiring ADA accommodations please call (602)542-2999 







































Liquor Licenses within One Mile – Elixir Bar & Restaurant 

Applicant Address: 633 S Estrella Parkway, Goodyear, AZ 85338 

Business Name Address Distance from 
Applicant 
Address 

License 
Series 

Liquor Establishments 
SOMEBURROS 50 N ESTRELLA PARKWAY 2,808.66 ft 12 

WALGREENS #02243 387 N ESTRELLA PARKWAY 4,400.83 ft 10 
SAFEWAY #2618 440 N ESTRELLA PARKWAY 4,803.1 ft 9 

SENOR TACO 525 N ESTRELLA PARKWAY 
#101 

5,066.51 ft 12 

TAILGATERS SPORTS GRILL & IL PRIMO PIZZA & 
WINGS 530 N ESTRELLA PARKWAY 

5,243.62 ft 12 

Schools 
CENTERRA MIRAGE STEM ACADEMY 15151 W CENTERRA DR S 2,260.91 ft 

BASIS GOODYEAR 15800 W SHERMAN ST 2,546.83 ft 
DESERT EDGE HIGH SCHOOL 15778 W YUMA RD 2,927.46 ft 

Series Legend: 

SCREENSHOT OF LEGEND 



Liquor License Evaluation - Elixir Bar & Restaurant

City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
INCREMENT P, NGA, USGS, City of Goodyear

April 2024 Liquor Licenses

Beer and Wine Store

Cocktails To Go

Government

Interim Permit

Liquor Store

Liquor Store Sampling

Restaurant

10/4/2024, 11:13:23 AM
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056

Clerk and Recorder
City of Goodyear

633 S Estrella Parkway #105

5,280 ft.



ITEM #: 4. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2304

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE

FOR RUBIO'S FRESH MEXICAN GRILL #225
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Theresa June Morse, Agent

SUMMARY
The applicant is requesting a recommendation of approval for a New Series 12 (Restaurant)
liquor license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
  

    

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of Application No. 308092 to the Arizona Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Theresa June Morse has submitted this application for a
New Series 12 liquor license for Rubio's Fresh Mexican Grill #225, which is located at 15479
W McDowell Rd. Suite 101, Goodyear, Arizona 85338. (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

FISCAL IMPACT
The applicant paid the $635 application fee for the liquor license per the Goodyear Municipal
User Fee Schedule. The business will also contribute to the tax base of the community.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A new Series 12 liquor license application was submitted by Ms. Morse on behalf of Rubio's
Fresh Mexican Grill #225. The establishment is presently operating under an interim permit
that was issued by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). A license
applicant is granted an interim permit, which is a provisional authorization issued pursuant to
A.R.S §4-203.01. This authorization permits the sale of spirituous liquor to continue while the
application is pending. Existing licenses must be of the same series and location as the



pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify. 

The City Clerk's office received the application from the DLLC on September 18th, 2024,
and the Public Hearing notice was posted on October 14th, 2024, to comply with
Arizona Revised Statute §4-201(b). No petitions or protests from qualified persons were
received during the comment period. The application was routed for approval to the Police
Department and the Development Services Department (Code Compliance and Planning &
Zoning), and the departments had no comments.

STAFF ANALYSIS
A Series 12 license is for a restaurant and is non-transferrable. This on-sale retail
privileges liquor license allows the holder to sell and serve all types of spirituous liquor
solely for consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty
percent (40%) of its gross revenue from the sale of food.

DLLC requires license owners, agents, and managers actively involved in the day-to-day
operations of the business to complete a state-approved management training course prior to
the issuance of a liquor license. The on-site manager has completed the Title 4 Basic
& Management training. Managers and staff will monitor guest alcohol consumption through
the licensed premises. The restaurant's policy is to require a valid ID for anyone who appears
to be under the legal drinking age.

There are no licensed childcare facilities or K-12 schools within 300 feet of the location to
comply with Arizona Revised Statutes §4-207. City Council's recommendation of "Approval",
"Disapproval" or "No Recommendation" will be forwarded to the DLLC for consideration during
their licensing review process.

Attachments
DLLC Local Governing Body Report 
One Mile Report and Evaluation Map 































































 
 

Liquor Licenses within One Mile – Rubio’s Fresh Mexican Grill #225 

 

Applicant Address: 15479 W McDowell Rd, Suite 101, Goodyear, AZ 85338 

 

Business Name Address Distance from 
Applicant 
Address 

License 
Series 

Liquor Establishments 
CIRCLE K STORE #9528 15535 W MCDOWELL RD 494.06 ft 9 

OLIVE GARDEN ITALIAN RESTAURANT #1773 15411 W MCDOWELL Road 555.39 ft 12 
BARRO'S PIZZA 15475 W MCDOWELL Road 

#103 
566.36 ft 12 

AH-SO SUSHI & STEAK 15475 W MCDOWELL Road 
#105 

566.36 ft 12 

BEVMO 15405 W MCDOWELL Road 764.76 ft 9 / 9S 
POPO'S FIESTA DEL SOL 15375 W MCDOWELL Road 765.01 ft 12 

WALGREENS #12334 1654 N PEBBLE CREEK 
Parkway 

807.13 ft 10 

ARRIBA MEXICAN GRILL 15370 W MCDOWELL Road 904.26 ft 12 
ROCK N ROLL SUSHI 15611 W MCDOWELL 

ROAD STE 110 
1,061.87 ft 12 

RED LOBSTER #6342 15311 W MCDOWELL Road 1,327 ft 12 
OREGANO'S PIZZA BISTRO 15280 W MCDOWELL Road 1,563.45 ft 12 

BABBO ITALIAN EATERY 15705 W MCDOWELL Road 1,678.12 ft 12 
TEXAS ROADHOUSE 15255 W MCDOWELL Road 1,780.99 ft 12 

WAL MART SUPERCENTER #5369 1100 N ESTRELLA Parkway 2,233.03 ft 9 / 9S 
PIZZA HUT #27007 15557 W ROOSEVELT 3,083.84 ft 10 

VALLEY CRAFT 15671 W ROOSEVELT 
STREET STE 102 

3,358 ft 10 / 10S 

AUGIE'S SPORTS GRILL 15605 W ROOSEVELT 
SUITE 100-101 

3,369.6 ft 12 

ALDI #161 845 N ESTRELLA Parkway 3,436.12 ft 10 / 10S 
SADDLE MOUNTAIN BREWING COMPANY 15651 W ROOSEVELT 

Street 
3,517.88 ft 12 / 3 

CHEDDARS SCRATCH KITCHEN 15030 W MCDOWELL Road 3,613.37 ft 12 
AKAIHANA SUSHI & GRILL 2293 N PEBBLE CREEK 

Parkway #101 
3,640.86 ft 12 

EL TATAKI SUSHI FUSION EXPRESS 790 N ESTRELLA Parkway 
#D & E 

3,721.31 ft 12 

HARKINS THEATRES AT ESTRELLA FALLS 15010 W MCDOWELL Road 4,153.23 ft 6 
BJ'S RESTAURANT & BREWHOUSE 14950 W MCDOWELL Road 4,232.96 ft 12 / 12G 

QUIKTRIP #1401 575 N ESTRELLA Parkway 4,719.64 ft 10 
TAILGATERS SPORTS GRILL & IL PRIMO PIZZA & 

WINGS 
530 N ESTRELLA Parkway 4,994.38 ft 12 

SENOR TACO 525 N ESTRELLA Parkway 
#101 

5,079.52 FT 12 

    
 
 

Schools 
N/A N/A N/A 

   
   



 
 

Series Legend:  

  

SCREENSHOT OF LEGEND 



Liquor License Evaluation - Rubio's Fresh Mexican Grill #225

City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
INCREMENT P, NGA, USGS, City of Goodyear

April 2024 Liquor Licenses

Bar

Beer and Wine Store

Beer and Wine Store Sampling

Hotel / Motel

Interim Permit

Liquor Store

Liquor Store Sampling

Microbrewery

Restaurant

Restaurant Growler

Unlicensed

10/7/2024, 1:26:47 PM
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056

Clerk and Recorder
City of Goodyear

15479W. McDowell Rd. Goodyear, AZ 85338

5,280 ft.



ITEM #: 5. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2285

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION OF THE EXPENDITURE OF CONSTRUCTION FUNDS

FOR APPROVED CIP PROJECT #60075 – BULLARD WATER CAMPUS
PRE-FILTER REPLACEMENT
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Anthony Dudley, Acting Water Services Director

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Jose Murillo, Water Services Utility Engineer

SUMMARY
A request to authorize the expenditure of construction funds up to $690,000 for Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter Replacement.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the expenditure of construction funds up to $690,000 for Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter Replacement. (Anthony
Dudley, Acting Water Services Director).  

FISCAL IMPACT
CIP Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter Replacement is currently programmed
in the FY2025 CIP with a total project budget of $967,200 with an estimated completion date
of June 2025.  

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Per city of Goodyear Resolution 08-1255, all expenditures of budgeted funds in excess of
$500,000 must obtain Council approval.

On April 25, 2022 (AI-602), Council approved CIP #60075 Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter
Replacement in the adoption of the FY2023 City of Goodyear City Manager’s Recommended
Budget.



STAFF ANALYSIS
CIP Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus (BWC) Pre-Filter Replacement will provide final
construction services for the project. In general, the proposed improvements include
demolition of the existing 10-micron filters at the BWC.  The current filters are 16 years old
and have reached the end of their operational life cycle. Staff routinely perform repairs and
modifications to the filters to maintain their functionality. A pre-design study, including
particulate size distribution (PSD) testing, was performed. The study results did not support
in-kind or similar replacement for the 10-micron pre-filters. The PSD results showed that less
than 1% of the particles were larger than 10 microns and would be captured by pre-filters. The
study recommended the installation of sand filters at each well site in lieu of 10-micron
pre-filters at the BWC.

The project scope shifted to detailed design, construction, and commissioning for sand
separators at Well 19, Well 22, and Well 26. The installation and maintenance of 3 sand
separators proved to be more economical than the replacement of the existing pre-filters.

This Council Action Request is to obtain authorization for the expenditure for the construction
of CIP Project #60075 – Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter Replacement.  



ITEM #: 6. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2325

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: ANNUAL ASSESSMENT FOR INTERGOVERNMENTAL

AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH MARICOPA COUNTY DEPTARTMENT
OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Brian Woodard, Emergency Manager

SUMMARY
This IGA between Maricopa County Department of Emergency Management and the City of
Goodyear provides emergency planning software, services and support for incident
response within the City of Goodyear.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
  

   

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the expenditure of annual assessment payment for the IGA with Maricopa County Department
of Emergency Management. (Brian Woodard, Emergency Manager)

FISCAL IMPACT
The shared cost to the City of Goodyear for FY24-25 is $8,259.90 which is included in the Fire
Department’s general fund budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Twenty-six jurisdictions participate in this regional IGA. This annual fee pays for the
Emergency Operations Center software component as well as a variety of services such as
assistance in writing and updating the jurisdiction’s emergency plan, assistance in conducting
training exercises, and providing a liaison to the city during large emergencies.  It enables
municipal partners to share equipment and staff in the event of an emergency which allows for
cost-efficiencies, and rapid response.  The agreement provides planning, training, and expert
staff resources at Goodyear’s disposal.  The partner funding is leveraged against the county
contribution and then matched by federal dollars.  This leveraging maximizes the value of the
municipal funding portion.





ITEM #: 7. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2273

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION REFERRING CITY CHARTER

AMENDMENTS TO THE VOTERS
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Roric Massey, City Attorney

SUMMARY
City Council will consider for possible action approving Resolution 2024-2430 referring four
questions to the qualified voters of the City of Goodyear, amending four Articles of the City of
Goodyear Charter, at a Special Election on May 20, 2025.  

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2430 REFERRING QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO
THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR WITH RESPECT TO
AMENDMENTS TO THE GOODYEAR CITY CHARTER, SAID QUESTIONS TO BE
SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT A CITY SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20,
2025. (Roric Massey, City Attorney)
 

FISCAL IMPACT
This item has no direct fiscal impact and the anticipated costs associated with the
recommendations are minimal.  Changes to the City Charter require an election and the costs
associated with the election have been included in the fiscal year 2025 budget. 
 

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The Arizona Constitution grants specific authority for cities with a population of more than



The Arizona Constitution grants specific authority for cities with a population of more than
3,500 to adopt a city charter.  This State provision recognizes the authority of locally elected
decision-makers to make local decisions, and the ability of the level of government closest to
the citizens to respond to specific needs in their communities.  A City Charter serves as the
foundational document for governance in the city.  In essence, the City Charter serves as the
“constitution” of the city. 

The original City Charter was adopted in 1987.  It has been amended multiple times, including
a comprehensive review and update in 2021.  On April 29, 2024, City Council created the
Ad-Hoc City Charter Review Committee (Committee) and directed the Committee to review the
current City Charter.  The Committee was charged with completing a more limited review of
certain provisions of the City Charter. 

The Committee is comprised of seven Goodyear residents:  John Cox (Chair), Susan
Schmelzer (Vice Chair), Fran Fee, David Halm, Jason Kish, Robert Piane, and Rodie Purcell.
 The Committee met three times in May and June of 2024. After extensive discussion, the
Committee recommended four amendments to the City Charter amending Articles I, II, IV, &
VI.   The proposed amendments are summarized as follows:

Article I.  The proposed amendment describes with more specificity the City’s reserved
powers and preserves local control in relation to land use planning and regulation to preserve
local control over those matters.  The amendment details that the City Council has the
authority, by simple majority vote, to regulate land use and development regulations, zoning
ordinances, and architectural design and site plan regulations.  

Article II.   The proposed amendment to Article II recommends changes to how adjustments
are made to compensation and benefits for the City Council.   The amendment preserves the
role of the Citizen’s Compensation Committee on salaries but adds benefits as an area the
committee may make recommendations on.   The proposed amendment further specifies that
the Committee’s recommendations on adjustments to salaries or benefits for the City Council
may only be accepted or rejected by the City Council and any adjustments become effective
the following budget year. 

Article IV.  This proposed amendment would shift the authority to create, delete, or reorganize
the various city departments from the City Council to the City Manager.  This authority would
be limited by the approved budget authority and would need to remain within the approved
employee counts approved by the City Council.

Article VI.  The proposed amendment preserves local control and clarifies that the City Council
has the authority by simple majority vote to levy certain taxes including for retail, food for home
consumption, online, restaurant and bar, utilities and communications, commercial real
property rental, residential real property rental, hotel, and construction sales tax among others
not otherwise prohibited by Federal or State Constitutions.   The amendment further preserves
the city’s bonding and debt issuance authority under current legal requirements. 

On September 16, 2024, the Ad-Hoc City Charter Review Committee presented its
recommendations to the City Council in a work session and this Resolution is in conformance
with the Committee’s recommendations. 

STAFF ANALYSIS
Any proposed changes to the City Charter require approval by a vote of Goodyear citizens.  If



Any proposed changes to the City Charter require approval by a vote of Goodyear citizens.  If
the voters approve the amendments to the Charter, the Governor is then required to sign it
and when that signature is affixed, the Charter is then in effect.   If the City Council approves
Resolution 2024-2034 and the Call of Election, the City staff and Attorney would begin the
process of placing the proposed amendments on a future election ballot.

Attachments
Resolution w-Exhibits 



Resolution No. 2024-2430 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2430 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, REFERRING QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED 
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR WITH RESPECT TO AMENDMENTS TO THE 
GOODYEAR CITY CHARTER, SAID QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT A 
CITY SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025. 
… 
WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-283(C) requires all charter amendments be referred to 
the voters of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee has made recommendations to the City 
Council for changes in the charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has referred recommendations to the voters for approval through 
this Resolution; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

 
The proposed amendments to the Goodyear City Charter in legislative format 
are attached hereto as Exhibit 1.   
 

SECTION 2. OFFICIAL BALLOT 
 
The Official Ballot for the Election shall be substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit 2.  
 

  
SECTION 3. AUTHORIZATION AND DIRECTION 

 
The City Attorney is authorized to make non-substantive changes to the 
Resolution or Exhibits needed to give effect to the referral of the offered 
amendments. 
 

  
  
SECTION 6. Resolution 2024-2430 shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 



Resolution No. 2024-2430 
Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 



 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

Proposed Amendments to Goodyear City Charter 
 

(on the following pages) 



Page 1  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 

ARTICLE I. INCORPORATION, FORM OF GOVERNMENT, POWERS OF 
CITY, BOUNDARIES 

 

Section 3. Powers of the City 

A.  The City shall have all the powers, functions, rights, privileges and immunities possible 

under the Constitution and general laws of Arizona as fully as though they were specifically 

enumerated in this Charter, and all of the powers, functions, rights, privileges and immunities 

granted or to be granted, either expressly or by implication, to charter cities and to cities and 

towns incorporated under the provisions of Title 9, Arizona Revised Statutes, not in conflict 

herewith, and in addition, the City shall have the power to: 

(1)  acquire property within or without its corporate limits for any City purposes in fee 

simple or lesser interest or estate by purchase, gift, devise, lease or condemnation. The 

City may lease, sell, convey and otherwise dispose of any real or personal property 

owned by the City in the manner, for such consideration, and upon such conditions as 

may be determined by the Council; 

(2)  require all persons, firms, or corporations responsible for new physical development 

within the City to provide for or furnish, or pay a fee for furnishing: (a) public utility 

easements; (b) water production, storage and transmission; (c) sewage collection, 

treatment and disposal; (d) park land and development; (e) school sites; (f) dedication 

and improvement of public rights-of-way; (g) bike paths and other necessary 

transportation; (h) drainage; (i) flood control; and (j) other public facilities necessary to 

maintain satisfactory levels of service for said new development, as provided by 

ordinance which shall include definite standards basing the foregoing requirements on 

the needs of the residents of said new development; 

(3)  THE CITY COUNCIL IN ORDER TO CONSERVE AND PROMOTE THE PUBLIC 
HEALTH, SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE, SHALL HAVE THE POWER, BY SIMPLE 
MAJORITY VOTE, TO ESTABLISH LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
CONSISTENT WITH ITS ADOPTED GENERAL PLAN, ZONING ORDINANCES, AND 
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND SITE PLAN REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS. require 
architectural and site plan review and approval prior to the development, construction, 
reconstruction, or conversion of any building. 
 

B.  In this Charter mention of a particular power shall not be construed to be exclusive or to 

restrict the scope of the powers which the City would have if the particular power were not 

mentioned. The Charter shall be liberally construed to the end that the City shall have all 



Page 2  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

powers necessary or convenient for the conduct of its municipal affairs, and for the health, 

safety, and general welfare of its residents, including all powers that cities may assume 

pursuant to State law and the State Constitution. 

  



Page 3  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO  
ARTICLE II. THE COUNCIL 

 

Section 11.  Salaries, Generally; Citizens Council Compensation Committee on 

Salaries AND BENEFITS for Elected City Officials 

A.  There is established a Council Compensation Committee on salaries for elected City 

officials. The Committee shall be comprised of a Chairman plus four (4) members who shall 

be appointed from residents. The terms shall be staggered in the manner provided by 

Council. The members of the Committee shall serve without compensation but shall be 

reimbursed for actual expenses. 

B.  IN ODD NUMBERED YEARS, The Committee shall conduct a review of the compensation 

AND BENEFITS provided to elected City officials. Such review shall be made for the purpose 

of recommending adjustments to pay levels. 

C.  In odd number years, tThe Committee shall submit to the City Clerk, a copy of their 

review and their recommendations. ANY CHANGE TO COMPENSATION SHALL BE 

CONSISTENT WITH THE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION. THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL 

ACCEPT OR REJECT THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE COMMITTEE. ANY CHANGE SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE THE FOLLOWING BUDGET YEAR. The recommendations of the 

Committee shall be accepted or rejected by the City Council. 

D.  THE COMMITTEE MAY ALSO REVIEW AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING 

CITY COUNCIL BENEFITS. AS WITH COMPENSATION, BENEFITS SHALL BE COMPETITIVE 

WITH COMPARABLE ARIZONA CITIES IN SIZE AND COMPLEXITY AND CONSISTENT WITH 

THOSE OFFERED TO THE GENERAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY. THE CITY COUNCIL MAY 

ACCEPT OR REJECT THE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS BY MAJORITY VOTES OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL AND ANY CHANGE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE THE FOLLOWING BUDGET 

YEAR. In the event that the Committee recommends a change, including a reduction, in the 

salaries for elected officials of an amount less than five and one-tenth percent (5.1%) than the 

existing salary for elected officials, then no question shall be submitted to the qualified 

electors. Such change shall become effective for the Mayor and all Councilmembers on July 

1st of even years. 

E.  In the event that the Committee recommends a change, including a reduction, in the 

salaries for elected officials of an amount greater than five and one tenth percent (5.1%) than 

the existing salary for elected officials, then the question shall be submitted to the qualified 



Page 4  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

electors at a regular election. If approved, such change shall become effective for the Mayor 

and all Councilmembers upon the canvass of the election. 

F.  Upon the effective date of the 2021 City Charter revision, the current City 

Councilmembers shall be compensated consistent with the provisions of City Ordinance 

2018-1404 and subsequent salary adjustments shall be based on that established salary. 

  



Page 5  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO  
ARTICLE IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS, OFFICES AND 

EMPLOYEES 

Section 1.  Administrative Departments and Offices 

A.  The CouncilCITY MANAGER, by ordinance not inconsistent with this Charter, shall 

provide for the organization, conduct and operation of the several offices and departments of 

the City as established by this Charter, for the creation of additional departments, for their 

consolidation, alteration or abolition WITHIN SUCH BUDGETARY AUTHORITY AND OVERALL 

EMPLOYEE COUNTS AS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL. 

B.  The City Manager may assign additional functions or duties to offices, departments or 

agencies. 

  



Page 6  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO  
ARTICLE VI.  FINANCE AND TAXATION 

Section 1. Fiscal 

The powers of the City concerning budget, taxation, financial and fiscal powers shall be 

limited only by the provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State and this Charter. 

Section 2. Taxing Powers 

A.  The Council, BY SIMPLE MAJORITY VOTE, shall have the power to levy and collect ad 

valorem and excise taxes, including, but not limited to, a transaction privilege tax ON 

CATEGORIES SUCH AS RETAIL, FOOD FOR HOME CONSUMPTION, ONLINE, RESTAURANT 

AND BAR, UTILITIES AND COMMUNICATIONS, COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY RENTAL, 

RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY RENTAL, AND CONSTRUCTION AMONG OTHER; a use tax, 

and a business license tax; PROPERTY TAX, and all other taxes not prohibited by Federal or 

State Constitution, for any or all of the following purposes: 

(1)  To pay the interest and to repay the bonded indebtedness of the City; 

(2)  For the general expenses incurred in the operation of City government; 

(3)  Establish special taxing districts to provide for improvements within specified 

areas of the City, including the authority to issue bonds for such improvements, and to 

levy taxes and assessments therefore within such specified area or areas; and 

(4)  For any other lawful municipal purpose. 

B.  The enumeration herein of the types of taxes and the purposes for which such taxes may 

be levied and collected shall not be deemed to limit in any way the taxing powers of the City. 

Section 3. Claims Against the City 

The City Council shall prescribe the manner in which claims against the City shall be 

presented, audited and paid, including the time period in which such claims, including 

negligence claims, may be submitted to the City. 

 

Section 4. Depositories, Transfers and Investment of City Funds 

A.  The City shall establish an accounting system that follows generally accepted accounting 

principles as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 



Page 7  Ex. 1 Proposed Charter Amendments 

B.  The Council may cause City monies to be deposited or invested in any depository or 

other investment so long as such deposit or investment is not contrary to the laws of the 

State. 

C.  Whenever there shall not be sufficient monies, in any of the interest funds for the bonded 

indebtedness of the City to pay the interest on such bonded indebtedness when due, the 

Council shall direct the transfer from the general or other fund having monies therein to such 

interest funds the necessary amounts of money to pay the interest on said bonded 

indebtedness, and the amount so transferred shall be returned to the respective funds from 

which such transfer was made whenever sufficient monies shall accrue in said bonded 

indebtedness funds, from the regular tax levied therefore. 

Section 5. Independent Audit and Review 

An independent audit of the City’s financial transactions shall be conducted as required by 

Arizona State Statute. Independent audits shall follow generally accepted accounting 

principles as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Section 6. DEBT AUTHORIZATION 

A. THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS ON DEBT 

AUTHORIZATION TO A PUBLIC VOTE AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL ELECTION WHEN AN 

ELECTION IS REQUIRED. DEBT AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE DECIDED BY SIMPLE 

MAJORITY OF ALL VOTES CAST ON THE QUESTION OF DEBT AUTHORIZATION. 

 

B. THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO ISSUE MUNICIPAL 

INDEBTEDNESS FOR ANY LAWFUL PURPOSES, WITH SUCH COUNCIL APPROVAL TO BE 

BY SIMPLE MAJORITY VOTE OF A QUORUM OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

 



Page 8  Ex. 2 Official Ballot Language 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

Official Ballot Language for Special Election 
 

(on the following pages) 



Page 1  Ex. 2 Official Ballot Language 
 

PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 1.  
 

Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article I Incorporation, Form of Government, Powers of the City, 
Boundaries of the Charter of the City of Goodyear to specify the powers of the City in 
regards to land use planning and regulation.  
 
 
Descriptive Title:   
 
Article I Incorporation, Form of Government, Powers of the City, Boundaries, would be 
amended to specify that the City Council has the power by simple majority vote to 
establish land use and development regulations, zoning ordinances, architectural 
design, and site plan regulations and standards, that are consistent with the adopted 
General Plan.    
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE I OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR BE AMENDED 
TO STATE THE CITY COUNCIL BY SIMPLE MAJORITY VOTE HAS THE POWER TO 
ESTABLISH LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS CONSISTENT WITH 
ITS ADOPTED GENERAL PLAN, ZONING ORDINANCES, AND ARCHITECTURAL 
DESIGN REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 
  



Page 2  Ex. 2 Official Ballot Language 
 

PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 2. 
 

Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article II The Council, Section 11 Salaries, generally, Citizen’s 
Compensation Committee on salaries for elected city officials of the Charter of the City 
of Goodyear to amend the procedure for adjustment to City Council salaries and 
benefits.   
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article II The Council, Section 11 Salaries, generally, Citizen’s Compensation 
Committee on salaries for elected city officials would be amended to add Benefits to the 
title, and to amend the procedure and scope of recommendations of the Citizen’s 
Compensation Committee to include both adjustments to salaries and benefits and 
provide that the City Council may only accept or reject that recommendation by simple 
majority vote.  
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE II, SECTION 11 OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR 
BE AMENDED TO INCLUDE BENEFITS IN THE TITLE AND TO AMEND THE 
PROCEDURE FOR THE CITIZEN’S COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND PROVIDE THAT THE CITY COUNCIL MAY ACCEPT OR 
REJECT THAT RECOMMENDATION BY SIMPLE MAJORITY VOTE? 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 
  



Page 3  Ex. 2 Official Ballot Language 
 

PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 3. 
 

Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article IV Administrative Departments, Officers and Employees of the 
Charter of the City of Goodyear to amend the administrative process for the 
organization of the various city departments.   
 
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article IV Administrative Departments, Officers and Employees would be amended to 
transfer the authority to create, consolidate, alter or abolish the various city departments 
from the City Council to the City Manager within the approved budget authority and 
employee counts as otherwise approved by the City Council.  
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE IV, OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR BE 
AMENDED TO TRANSFER THE AUTHORITY TO CREATE, CONSOLIDATE, ALTER 
OR ABOLISH THE VARIOUS CITY DEPARTMENTS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL TO 
THE CITY MANAGER WITHIN THE APPROVED BUDGETARY AND EMPLOYEE 
COUNTS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 
  



Page 4  Ex. 2 Official Ballot Language 
 

PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 4. 
 
Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article VI Finance and Taxation of the Charter of the City of Goodyear to 
codify allowable transaction privilege tax categories and to codify currently existing rules 
related to bond approval and issuance.    
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article VI Finance and Taxation would be amended to codify allowable categories of 
municipal transaction privilege tax categories and to further codify existing rules 
regarding the procedure for bond approval and issuance.  
 
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE VI FINANCE AND TAXATION, OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR BE AMENDED TO CODIFY ALLOWABLE CATEGORIES OF MUNICIPAL 
TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX CATEGORIES AND TO FURTHER CODIFY 
EXISTING RULES REGARDING THE PROCEDURE FOR BOND APPROVAL AND 
ISSUANCE? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 
 
 



ITEM #: 8. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2264

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: ANNEXATION OF TWO PROPERTIES SOUTH OF W LOWER BUCKEYE

ROAD FOR STREAM DATA CENTER (SDC I AND SDC II)
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Guadalupe Ortiz Cortez, Senior Planner

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Fae Sowders with Bergin, Frakes, Smalley & Oberholtzer, PLLC

SUMMARY
Two Public Hearings and the consideration of two Annexation Ordinances for the annexation
of 0.558 acres of property along Litchfield Road south of West Lower Buckeye Road (SDC I
Property) and annexation of 3.342 acres of property along Litchfield Road south of West
Lower Buckeye Road (SDC II Property).

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

    

RECOMMENDATION
1. ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1619, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF
ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7,
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING
APPROXIMATELY .558 ACRES OF PROPERTY ALONG SOUTH LITCHFIELD ROAD,
SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO AND
SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR,
PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG AGRICULTURAL; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS
ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY.

2. ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1620, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF
ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7,
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING



APPROXIMATELY 3.342 ACRES OF PROPERTY ALONG SOUTH LITCHFIELD ROAD,
SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO AND
SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF
GOODYEAR, PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG AGRICULTURAL;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A
COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY. (Guadalupe Ortiz Cortez, Senior Planner)

FISCAL IMPACT
Annexation of land has a fiscal impact. A brief overview of anticipated public infrastructure and
service impacts is included in the staff analysis section of this staff report.  The west half of
Litchfield Road will be constructed by the property owners and the City will be responsible for
future maintenance of the roadway.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The property to be annexed into the City abuts two parcels on the west side of S. Litchfield
Road.  The first parcel is adjacent to the southwest corner of W. Lower Buckeye Road and S.
Litchfield Road (the “SDC I Property”). The SDC I Property was zoned I-1 (Light Industrial) by
Ordinance No. 2006-0997 adopted by Council on March 6, 2006. The second parcel is
adjacent to the west side of S. Litchfield Road between the southern boundary of the SDC I
Property and W. Broadway Road (the “SDC II Property”). The SDC II Property was zoned I-1
(Light Industrial) with a PAD Overlay by Ordinance No. 2023-1574 adopted by Council on July
10, 2023. The SDC I Property and the SDC II Property are being developed as the Stream
Data Center Campus. 

The owners of the SDC I Property and the SDC II Property are required to complete full
half-street improvements for the west half of S. Litchfield Road adjacent to their respective
properties and to dedicate the right-of-way needed for such improvements. The property to be
annexed into the City abuts the west-half of S. Litchfield Road. The assessor’s map reflects
the property as being county right of way.  Accordingly, to allow the half-street improvements
to S. Litchfield Road to be constructed pursuant to the city’s standards, the two property
owners are seeking to have the remainder of their respective properties annexed into the city. 
Approximately 0.558 acres of the SDC I Property and approximately 3.342 acres of the SDC II
Property are to be annexed into the city and conveyed to the city for right-of-way. 

At its regular meeting on July 8, 2024, City Council voted to authorize staff to initiate the
annexation process to annex approximately 0.558 acres of the SDC I Property and
approximately 3.342 acres of the SDC II Property. 

At its regular meeting on September 9, 2024, City Council held public hearings to consider
annexation of approximately 0.558 acres of the SDC I Property and approximately 3.342
acres of the SDC II Property. There were no public speakers for the items. No action was
needed at these hearings. 

STAFF ANALYSIS
Current Policy:



Current Policy:
Arizona State Statue regulates annexations. Below is a brief summary of the annexation
process: 

Staff conducts a cursory review of the annexation proposal.
Staff determines whether the proposed annexation area meets the state legal
requirements for annexation as set forth in A.R.S. § 9-471.
Assuming the proposed annexation meets the legal requirements for annexation, staff
conducts a review of the annexation proposal to determine the desirability of the
annexation, which include an impact analysis of the proposed annexation.
Staff provides an impact analysis of the annexation proposal to City Council. The City
Council will consider the proposal and make a determination on whether to authorize
staff to proceed with the annexation. 

If authorization is not provided, then no further action on the annexation will be
taken.
If authorization is provided, staff will move forward with the state statutory
requirements for annexation.

After further staff review of the proposal, a blank petition containing the legal description
and an accurate map of the annexation territory is filed with the County Recorder and
notice and a copy of the filing shall be given to the clerk of the board of supervisors and
to the county assessor. The description shall identify the entity, if any, that will be
responsible for maintaining the existing rights-of-way and roadways that are within or
contiguous to the exterior boundaries of the area of the proposed annexation.
After the blank petition is filed, there is a 30-day waiting period. The first of two public
hearings must be held within the last 10 days of this 30-day waiting period to receive
public input on the annexation.  Notices of the public hearing must be: (i) published in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen days before the end of the 30-day
waiting period and six (6) days before the public hearing; (ii) be posted in at least three
conspicuous public places in the area being annexed at least six (6) days before the
public hearing; (iii) sent by first class mail to the chairperson of the board of supervisors
of the county in which the property being annexed is located at least six (6) days before
the public hearing; (iv) sent by first class mail, with an accurate map of the property
being annexed to each owner of the real and personal property as shown on the
statement provided by the county assessor and department of revenue at least six (6)
days before the public hearing
After the first public hearing and after the 30-day waiting period is over, the blank petition
may be signed and collected.
Once signatures have been collected on the blank petition, an annexation ordinance is
prepared, and a second public hearing is held for Council’s consideration of the
Ordinance.  If approved by Council, the signed petitions and required affidavits will be
filed with the Maricopa County Recorder and a copy of the Annexation Ordinance is
submitted to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors for Maricopa County. 

Details of the Request:
As set forth above, the City Council has been asked to annex portions of the SDC I Property
and the SDC II Property, which is needed for the expansion of the west half of Litchfield Road
adjacent to the respective properties. An aerial photo of the properties is included as
Attachment A.

City Council is being asked to complete the annexation process by holding the final public
hearings required before the adoption of annexation ordinances and to adopt annexation
ordinances that annex the portions of the SDC I Property and the SDC II Property needed for



ordinances that annex the portions of the SDC I Property and the SDC II Property needed for
the expansion of the west half of Litchfield Road adjacent to the respective properties and that
adopt zoning for the annexed property. The Annexation Ordinance and associated
Certification of Map for SDC I Property are included as Attachments B and C. The Annexation
Ordinance and associated Certification of Map for SDC II Property are included as
Attachments D and E.

The City’s General Plan designates this area as Industrial. The existing County zoning for both
properties is Rural-190 (RU-190). Upon annexation, the property would be designated the city
equivalent zoning district of Agricultural (AG). The property is located within the city’s
municipal planning area and meets State statutory requirements for annexation.

If adopted, and assuming there are no challenges to the adoption, the annexation
ordinance(s) will become final within 30 days of adoption.
Prior to these public hearings, in accordance with the City’s annexation policy and state law,
the following actions have occurred: 

On July 8, 2024, City Council voted to authorize staff to initiate the annexation of
approximately 0.558 acres of property along Litchfield Road south of West Lower
Buckeye Road (SDC I Property). At this meeting, City Council also authorized staff to
initiate the annexation of approximately 3.342 acres of property along Litchfield Road
south of West Lower Buckeye Road (SDC II Property).
On July 9, 2024, staff forwarded a legal description of the properties to be annexed and a
map of the Annexation Area to the Maricopa County Assessor and the Arizona
Department of Revenue, Property Valuation and Equalization Division (“ADOR”)
requesting a list of the owners of the property to be annexed and the appraisal and
assessment of the property being annexed.
On August 19, 2024, after receiving the necessary information from the Maricopa County
Assessor and ADOR, a blank (unsigned) petition containing the legal description and an
accurate map of all exterior boundaries, including all County rights-of-way and roadways
with no taxable value, of the territory proposed to be annexed was filed with the County
Recorder of Maricopa County. The blank petition was accompanied by a sworn affidavit
verifying that no part of the territory for which the filing is made is subject to an earlier
filing for annexation. 
On September 9, 2024, City Council held a Public Hearing to discuss and take public
input on the proposed annexations.  

Notices of the public hearing being held on September 9, 2024 for each annexation
was published in the Arizona Republic West Valley Edition on August 23, 2024,
which is at least fifteen days before the end of the 30-day waiting period and at
least six (6) days before the public hearing. On August 21, 2024, notices of the
public hearings were also posted in three conspicuous places in each of the
properties proposed to be annexed, which is at least six (6) days before the public
hearing.  On August 21, 2024, notices of the public hearing along with an accurate
map of the Annexation Area for each of the proposed annexations was mailed by
first class mail to the County Board of Supervisors; to the County Assessor; and to
the owner of real and personal property identified on the lists received from the
Maricopa County Assessor and Arizona Department of Revenue, which is at least
six (6) days before the public hearing.
No public comment was received in regard to these annexations at the September
9, 2024 public hearings. 

After the September 9, 2024 hearings and the expiration of the 30-day waiting period
(September 17, 2024), the blank petitions were circulated by the applicant for signatures.



As part of the annexation process, the petition must be signed by the property owners
who own at least 50% of the value of the property and by at least 51% of the owners of
the property being annexed. With regard to the proposed SDC I annexation, the property
is owned by a single entity (SDC I Property Owner), and the appropriate signature was
received. With regard to the proposed SDC II annexation, the property is owned by a
single entity (SDC II Property Owner), and the appropriate signature was received.
Having collected the required signatures on the blank petitions, Annexation Ordinance
No. 2024-1619 and 2024-1620 have been prepared and are being presented for City
Council’s consideration.

City’s Annexation Policy
The Goodyear City Council adopted an annexation policy by Resolution 2001-768 that
provides staff with guidelines for the evaluation of annexation requests: 

A. The City’s ability to provide basic services in a timely manner
B. Long-term desirability for community development and economic growth
C. Likelihood of the area being developed in Maricopa County or being annexed by
another city or town
D. Ability to control the quality of land uses and infrastructure standards
E. Compatibility with General Plan, infrastructure needs, and timing of development
 

As discussed above, the 0.558-acre annexation proposal (SDC I) and the 3.342-acre
annexation proposal (SDC II) (for a total of 3.9 acres) are immediately adjacent to two
properties being developed as Stream Data Center Campus. In this case, the annexation
requests involve the annexation of property that will be dedicated to the city as right-of-way for
the west half of S. Litchfield Road and will be improved by the adjacent property owners to
meet city standards as part of the development of the Stream Data Center Campus. The
proposed annexation will not result in any increase in service requirements on the part of the
city other than additional maintenance responsibilities for road improvements for the west-half
of S. Litchfield Road that will be constructed to support the development of Stream Data
Center Campus.  It is not likely that Maricopa County will improve S. Litchfield Road between
W. Lower Buckeye Road and W. Broadway Road nor is it likely that Avondale, which has
annexed to the eastern boundary of S. Litchfield Road south of W. Lower Buckeye will either
annex past the center line of S. Litchfield Road or develop the west half of S. Litchfield Road. 
This annexation will allow the city to ensure its infrastructure needs and standards are met and
compatible with the General Plan.

If the two annexation Ordinances are adopted, copies of the adopted ordinances and all
exhibits referred to therein are to be filed and recorded in the office of the County Recorder of
Maricopa County, Arizona and a copy of the adopted ordinances and all exhibits referred to
therein are to be sent to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of Maricopa County, Arizona.
 

Attachments
Attachment A - Aerial Photo 
Attachment B - Ordinance No. 2024-1619 
Attachment C - SDC I Certification of Map 
Attachment D - Ordinance No. 2024-1620 
Attachment E - SDC II Certification of Map 
Staff Presentation 





City of Goodyear, PHX GIS, City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land
Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS,

EPA

SDC I and SDC II Annexations
along South Litchfield Road

South of Lower Buckeye Road

P2
4-

00
09

7 
SD

C
 I 

an
d 

P2
4-

00
14

5 
SD

C
 II

 A
nn

ex
at

io
ns

SDC II
S Litchfield Road

MC 85
SDC I

W Broadway Road

W Lower Buckeye Road

gortizcortez
Line

gortizcortez
Line



Ordinance No. 2024-1619 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1619 
… 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY .558 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
ALONG SOUTH LITCHFIELD ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS 
CONTIGUOUS TO AND SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG AGRICULTURAL; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY 
OF THIS ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY. 
… 
WHEREAS, a petition in writing, accompanied by a map or plot of said real property, having been 
filed and presented to the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, signed by the 
owner of more than one-half in value of the real and personal property and more than one-half of 
the persons owning real and personal property as would be subject to taxation by the City of 
Goodyear in the event of annexation within the territory and land hereinafter described as shown 
by the last assessment of said property, which said territory is contiguous to the City of Goodyear, 
and not now embraced within its limits, asking that the property more particularly hereinafter 
described be annexed to the City of Goodyear, and to extend and increase the corporate limits of 
the City of Goodyear so as to embrace the same; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Arizona are desirous of complying 
with said petition and extending and increasing the corporate limits of the City of Goodyear to 
include said territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the property that is the subject of the annexation petition is undeveloped and 
unoccupied; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the said petition sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior boundaries 
of the entire area proposed to be annexed to the City of Goodyear, and had attached thereto at 
all times an accurate map of the territory desired to be annexed; and, 
 
WHEREAS, no alterations increasing or reducing the territory sought to be annexed have been 
made after the said petition had been signed by any owner of real and personal property in such 
territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the provisions of A.R.S. §9-471, and amendments thereto, have been fully observed; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now on file in 
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, together with a true and correct copy 
of the original petition referred to herein, which is on file in the office of the Maricopa County 
Recorder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 



Ordinance No. 2024-1619 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
SECTION 1. ANNEXATION 

 
That the approximate .558 acres of territory described in Exhibit A – Legal 
Description and depicted in Exhibit B – Annexation Map,  both of which are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby annexed to the City of 
Goodyear, and that the present corporate limits are hereby extended and 
increased to include the approximate .558 acres of territory described in Exhibit 
A - Legal Description (the “Annexation Property”); and that the official map of the 
City of Goodyear be amended to include the Annexation Property. 
 

SECTION 2. ZONING 
 
That the City of Goodyear zoning classification for the Annexation Property shall 
be Agricultural (AG) (being the City of Goodyear zoning classification most 
consistent with Maricopa County’s classification of RU-190). That the official 
zoning map of the City of Goodyear be amended to show the City of Goodyear’s 
zoning classification for the Annexation Property. 
 

SECTION 3. RECORDATION 
 
A copy of this ordinance and all exhibits referred to herein, including Exhibit A – 
Legal Description and Exhibit B – Annexation Map, which is an accurate map of 
the territory hereby annexed to the City of Goodyear, shall be filed and recorded 
in the office of the County Recorder of Maricopa County, Arizona and a copy of 
this ordinance and all exhibits referred to herein shall be provided to the Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors of Maricopa County, Arizona. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE 
  
 This Ordinance shall become effective as prescribed by law.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2024-1619 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a _____ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
ANNEXATION LEGAL 
STREAM  -  SDC PHX I 
GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 

June 19, 2024 
Job No.18292 

Page 1 of 1 

RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY | 2401 W. Peoria Ave, Suite 130, Phoenix, AZ 85029 
C:\RICK\Projects\P_SIG_H\2018-292 - SWC LOWER BUCKEYE AND LITCHFIELD RD\DOCS\LEGALS\18292-ANNEX-SDC_PHX_I.docx 

THE EAST 33 FEET OF THE NORTH 808.67 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND 
MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA,  

EXCEPT THE NORTH 33 FEET THEREOF, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 21, MARKED BY A BRASS CAP IN 
HANDHOLE STAMPED “MARICOPA COUNTY,” FROM WHICH THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, MARKED BY A BRASS CAP IN HANDHOLE STAMPED “MARICOPA COUNTY” BEARS  
SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2605.12 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, A DISTANCE OF 33.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 775.64 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 88°58'13" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 33.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 01°01'23" WEST, PARALLEL WITH AND 33.00 FEET EAST OF SAID EAST LINE, A 
DISTANCE OF 776.86 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 88°55'27" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 33.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SAID AREA CONTAINS 25,616 SQUARE FEET OR 0.588 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

    6/19/24 

Exhibit A



W. LOWER BUCKEYE  ROAD

S.
 L

IT
C

H
FI

EL
D

  R
O

A
D

W. BROADWAY  ROAD

EL
 C

IE
LO

ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION

GOODYEAR, ARIZONA
STREAM - SDC PHX I2401 W PEORIA AVE, STE 130

PHOENIX, AZ 85029
602.957.3350

San Diego - Riverside - San Luis Obispo - Sacramento - Orange - Tucson - Phoenix - Las Vegas - Denver

rickengineering.com

SOSTROM

EC

ERIC L.
41894

ACIFITR

.ONET

R
E

G
IS

TE

RED LAND SURVE
Y

O
R

ARIZONA U.S.A

.

D
a te Signed . . . . . .

. .

Exhibit B



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF MAP 
 
 

MAP OF AREA  
TO BE ANNEXED 

 
 
 
I,  Joe Pizzilo, Mayor of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing map is a true and correct map of the territory annexed under and by virtue 
of the petition of the real and personal property owners in the said territory and by 
Ordinance No. 2024-1619, annexing the territory described in Ordinance No. 2024-
1619 and as shown on said map as a part of that territory to be included within the 
corporate limits of the City of Goodyear, Arizona. 
 
        

_________________________________ 
Joe Pizzillo 

 
            Date: ___________________ 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 



Ordinance No. 2024-1620 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1620 
… 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 3.342 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
ALONG SOUTH LITCHFIELD ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD, WHICH IS 
CONTIGUOUS TO AND SURROUNDED BY THE EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, PROVIDING A CITY ZONING DESIGNATION OF AG AGRICULTURAL; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY 
OF THIS ORDINANCE AND TO PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF MARICOPA COUNTY. 
… 
WHEREAS, a petition in writing, accompanied by a map or plot of said real property, having been 
filed and presented to the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, signed by the 
owner of more than one-half in value of the real and personal property and more than one-half of 
the persons owning real and personal property as would be subject to taxation by the City of 
Goodyear in the event of annexation within the territory and land hereinafter described as shown 
by the last assessment of said property, which said territory is contiguous to the City of Goodyear, 
and not now embraced within its limits, asking that the property more particularly hereinafter 
described be annexed to the City of Goodyear, and to extend and increase the corporate limits of 
the City of Goodyear so as to embrace the same; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Arizona are desirous of complying 
with said petition and extending and increasing the corporate limits of the City of Goodyear to 
include said territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the property that is the subject of the annexation petition is undeveloped and 
unoccupied; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the said petition sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior boundaries 
of the entire area proposed to be annexed to the City of Goodyear, and had attached thereto at 
all times an accurate map of the territory desired to be annexed; and, 
 
WHEREAS, no alterations increasing or reducing the territory sought to be annexed have been 
made after the said petition had been signed by any owner of real and personal property in such 
territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the provisions of A.R.S. §9-471, and amendments thereto, have been fully observed; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now on file in 
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, together with a true and correct copy 
of the original petition referred to herein, which is on file in the office of the Maricopa County 
Recorder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 



Ordinance No. 2024-1620 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
SECTION 1. ANNEXATION 

 
That the approximate 3.342 acres of territory described in Exhibit A – Legal 
Description and depicted in Exhibit B – Annexation Map,  both of which are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby annexed to the City of 
Goodyear, and that the present corporate limits are hereby extended and 
increased to include the approximate 3.342 acres of territory described in Exhibit 
A - Legal Description (the “Annexation Property”); and that the official map of the 
City of Goodyear be amended to include the Annexation Property. 
 

SECTION 2. ZONING 
 
That the City of Goodyear zoning classification for the Annexation Property shall 
be Agricultural (AG) (being the City of Goodyear zoning classification most 
consistent with Maricopa County’s classification of RU-190). That the official 
zoning map of the City of Goodyear be amended to show the City of Goodyear’s 
zoning classification for the Annexation Property. 
 

SECTION 3. RECORDATION 
 
A copy of this ordinance and all exhibits referred to herein, including Exhibit A – 
Legal Description  and Exhibit B – Annexation Map, which is an accurate map of 
the territory hereby annexed to the City of Goodyear, shall be filed and recorded 
in the office of the County Recorder of Maricopa County, Arizona and a copy of 
this ordinance and all exhibits referred to herein shall be provided to the Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors of Maricopa County, Arizona. 
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE 
  
 This Ordinance shall become effective as prescribed by law.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2024-1620 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a _____ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
ANNEXATION LEGAL 
STREAM  -  SDC PHX II 
GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 

June 19, 2024 
Job No.18292 

Page 1 of 1 

RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY | 2401 W. Peoria Ave, Suite 130, Phoenix, AZ 85029 
C:\RICK\Projects\P_SIG_H\2018-292 - SWC LOWER BUCKEYE AND LITCHFIELD RD\DOCS\LEGALS\18292-ANNEX-SDC_PHX_II.docx 

THE EAST 33 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, OF 
THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA,  

EXCEPT THE NORTH 808.67 FEET THEREOF, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 21, MARKED BY A BRASS CAP IN 
HANDHOLE STAMPED “MARICOPA COUNTY,” FROM WHICH THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, MARKED BY A BRASS CAP IN HANDHOLE STAMPED “MARICOPA COUNTY” BEARS  
SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2605.12 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, A DISTANCE OF 808.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 01°01'23" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1,796.45 FEET TO THE EAST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 21, 

THENCE SOUTH 00°59'44" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, A DISTANCE OF 2,615.40 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 21; 

THENCE NORTH 89°38'18" WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, A DISTANCE OF 33.01 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 00°59'44" WEST, PARALLEL WITH AND 33.00 FEET EAST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 2,614.61 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 01°01'23" WEST, PARALLEL WITH AND 33.00 FEET EAST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
NORTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 1,796.44 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 88°58'13" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 33.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SAID AREA CONTAINS 145,578 SQUARE FEET OR 3.342 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

  6/19/24 

Exhibit A



W. LOWER BUCKEYE  ROAD

S.
 L

IT
C

H
FI

EL
D

  R
O

A
D

W. BROADWAY  ROAD

EL
 C

IE
LO

ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION

GOODYEAR, ARIZONA
STREAM - SDC PHX II2401 W PEORIA AVE, STE 130

PHOENIX, AZ 85029
602.957.3350

San Diego - Riverside - San Luis Obispo - Sacramento - Orange - Tucson - Phoenix - Las Vegas - Denver

rickengineering.com

SOSTROM

EC

ERIC L.
41894

ACIFITR

.ONET

R
E

G
IS

TE

RED LAND SURVE
Y

O
R

ARIZONA U.S.A

.

D
a t e Signe d . . . . . .

. .

Exhibit B



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF MAP 
 
 

MAP OF AREA  
TO BE ANNEXED 

 
 
 
I,  Joe Pizzilo, Mayor of the City of Goodyear, Arizona, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing map is a true and correct map of the territory annexed under and by virtue 
of the petition of the real and personal property owners in the said territory and by 
Ordinance No. 2024-1620, annexing the territory described in Ordinance No. 2024-
1620 and as shown on said map as a part of that territory to be included within the 
corporate limits of the City of Goodyear, Arizona. 
 
        

_________________________________ 
Joe Pizzillo 

 
            Date: ___________________ 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 



November 4, 2024City Council 1

SDC I and SDC II Annexations



SDC I and SDC II 
Annexations

SDC I 
• Approx. 0.558 acres

SDC II
• Approx. 3.342 acres

November 4, 2024City Council 2

Annexation Properties

W LOWER BUCKEYE ROAD

S LITCHFIELD ROAD

MC85 SDC I

SDC II

APS 
Substation

Stream 
Data

Center



Annexation Process

• July 8th – Council authorization

• September 9th – First public hearings

• Tonight – Final public hearings

November 4, 2024City Council 3

SDC I and SDC II Annexations



Annexation Evaluation Criteria

• Consistent with City’s Annexation Policy 

November 4, 2024City Council 4

SDC I and SDC II Annexations



Recommendation

• Adopt Ordinance No. 2024-1619 (SDC I)

• Adopt Ordinance No. 2024-1620 (SDC II)

November 4, 2024City Council 5

SDC I and SDC II Annexations



ITEM #: 9. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2274

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH EPCOR WATER

ARIZONA INC. FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD MAY 20, 2025
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Roric Massey, City Attorney

SUMMARY
This franchise agreement grants EPCOR Water Arizona Inc. (EPCOR) the right to construct,
maintain, and operate water distribution facilities within rights-of-way located within the City of
Goodyear in order to provide water services for areas designated by the Arizona Corporation
Commission. EPCOR does not currently provide wastewater collection services within the city
of Goodyear but the franchise agreement allows EPCOR to install wastewater collection
facilities within city rights-of-way at a future date if the Arizona Corporation Commission
expands EPCOR’s service territory. The franchise agreement would be approved or rejected
by the qualified electors of the City of Goodyear at the May 20, 2025, Special Election.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2431 APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR AND EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND PLACING THE APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT OF A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025,
THAT GRANTS EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS THE
RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE
UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF
GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE ADDITIONS THERETO, WATER DELIVERY AND
WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUPPLYING WATER AND COLLECTING WASTEWATER TO THE
CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, AND PERSONS AND
CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE LIMITS THEREOF, FOR ALL
PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN
RESPECT THERETO. (Roric Massey, City Attorney)



FISCAL IMPACT
This franchise agreement requires EPCOR to pay the City of Goodyear three percent (3%) of
the gross profits of the sale of water services or wastewater collection services within the
boundaries of the city as a franchise fee. EPCOR currently has a license agreement with the
city and pays a license fee of two percent (2%) of the gross profits of the sale of water services
within the boundaries of the city. The city collects between $22,000 and $26,000 per year
under the current license agreement with EPCOR.  Costs associated with the special election
have been included as a part of the FY2025 budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
EPCOR is a regulated utility company that supplies water and wastewater collection services
to customers across Arizona. The City and EPCOR previously negotiated a license agreement
to allow EPCOR to use the city right-of-way to install water distribution facilities. EPCOR has
been operating within the city right-of-way under this license with the intent to enter into a
franchise agreement with the city. The license allowed EPCOR to install and maintain
infrastructure within the city-maintained right-of-way to provide water service within its service
area. The license required EPCOR to pay a license fee of two percent (2%) of the gross
receipts from the sale of potable drinking water within the license area.  

STAFF ANALYSIS
Franchise agreements are authorized by the Arizona Constitution and the Goodyear City
Charter. Franchise agreements are important because they provide stability and help the City
of Goodyear effectively plan for the future in coordination with public utility companies. The
city currently has franchise agreements with Arizona Public Service (APS) for the provision of
electrical service and Southwest Gas for the provision of natural gas services.

This franchise agreement is a contract between the City of Goodyear and EPCOR. The
franchise agreement gives EPCOR a non-exclusive right to use the city's streets, alleys, and
other public rights-of-way to construct, maintain, and operate their water distribution facilities
safely and efficiently to serve their customers in the City of Goodyear. The city will collect a
three percent (3%) franchise fee for all EPCOR utilities provided to customers in the service
area which currently includes water distribution facilities and may include wastewater collection
if EPCOR provides these services to city residents at a future date. EPCOR is responsible for
the installation and maintenance of its infrastructure at its own cost and shall be required to
relocate its infrastructure when the city constructs improvements to or within the right-of-way.
The franchise agreement also ensures EPCOR is using rights-of-way safely and efficiently and
they comply with city regulations. Within the franchise agreement, EPCOR commits to
designing, constructing, and completing any projects in a timely fashion and in partnership
with the City. EPCOR will consult and coordinate with the City on a regular basis to ensure
emergencies, damage mitigation, traffic control, or defaults are addressed to the best of their
ability.

The Arizona Constitution requires that voters in the city approve a municipal franchise
agreement. EPCOR will be responsible for costs incurred by the City for holding a general
election to approve this franchise agreement and the City will equitably apportion only those
costs attributable to the election of this franchise agreement to EPCOR if other items are on
the ballot. If approved by a majority of the voters at the May 2025 Special Election, this
franchise agreement will be effective for a term of 25-years, which is the maximum allowed by
the Arizona Constitution, and will go into effect June 1, 2025. Unless terminated earlier by a
written agreement this franchise agreement will be effective through May 30, 2050.



Attachments
Resolution with Exhibit A 



Resolution No. 2024-2431 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2431 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR AND EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND 
PLACING THE APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT OF A 
SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025, THAT GRANTS EPCOR WATER 
ARIZONA INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE 
TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE PUBLIC 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE ADDITIONS 
THERETO, WATER DELIVERY AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS WITH ALL 
NECESSARY APPURTENANCES, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUPPLYING WATER AND 
COLLECTING WASTEWATER TO THE CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS 
THEREOF, AND PERSONS AND CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE 
LIMITS THEREOF, FOR ALL PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN RESPECT THERETO. 
… 
WHEREAS, EPCOR Water Arizona Inc. (EPCOR) has a certificate of convenience and necessity 
issued by the Arizona Corporation Commission to provide utility services within the boundaries of 
the City of Goodyear; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and EPCOR are party to a License Agreement that regulates EPCOR’s 
usage of the public right-of-way to provide utility services within Goodyear's boundaries; and 
 
WHEREAS, the license agreement between the City and EPCOR will expire in 2025 and the City 
and EPCOR intended the license to be temporary and to enter into a Franchise Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and EPCOR have negotiated a twenty-five (25) year franchise agreement 
that will regulate EPCOR's usage of the public right-of-way to provide utility services within 
Goodyear's boundaries; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City's electors will consider the proposed Franchise Agreement in the May 20, 
2025 Special Election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the public's interest to enter into the proposed 
franchise agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. In compliance with the City of Goodyear Charter, Article XII, Section I, and 

Arizona Revised Statute §9-502(B), the City Council finds that entering into the 
proposed Franchise Agreement with EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc. (attached as 
Exhibit A), is beneficial to the community and the proposed Franchise Agreement 
is approved for submission to the electors of the community for approval at the 
Special Election scheduled for May 20, 2025; and 
 



Resolution No. 2024-2431 
Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk and City Attorney are directed to comply with all applicable legal 
requirements in the publication and referral of the proposed Franchise 
Agreement to the electors of the community; and 
 

SECTION 3. The Council authorizes the Mayor to execute all documents, under the terms 
detailed in the attached Franchise Agreement upon approval of the Franchise by 
the electors of the community; and 
 

SECTION 3. The Legal Department is authorized to add necessary exhibits and to make 
necessary language changes that do not alter the substantive or essential terms 
of the agreement in compliance with the City Charter or Arizona statutory law; 
and 
 

SECTION 4. Resolution 2024-2431 shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC. 
AND 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 
 
 

(On the following pages) 
 



Page 1 of 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC. 
AND 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 
 

 
This, FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC. AND THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, 
ARIZONA is made by CITY OF GOODYEAR, an Arizona municipal corporation (“City”), and EPCOR Water 
Arizona Inc. an Arizona corporation, or its successors and assigns (''EPCOR"). 
 

RECITALS: 
 
A. WHEREAS, EPCOR represents and warrants to the City that it is a public service corporation 

within the meaning of Article 15, Section 2, of the Arizona Constitution and is authorized to 
provide water and wastewater collection services within portions of Maricopa County, Arizona, 
in accordance with one or more Certificates of Convenience and Necessity issued by the Arizona 
Corporation Commission; and 

B. WHEREAS, EPCOR will own, operate and maintain public water and wastewater systems within 
the City limits of Goodyear, Arizona; and 

C. WHEREAS, EPCOR, as a public service corporation dedicated to providing safe and reliable 
service to all its customers including those within the City of Goodyear, commits to providing a 
highest level of utility service to its water and wastewater customers at level on par or 
exceeding that provided by the City; and 

D. WHEREAS, EPCOR commits to designing, constructing and completing any capital improvement 
and operations and maintenance projects, including emergency projects, in a timely fashion and 
in partnership with the City; and  

E. WHEREAS, EPCOR and City desire to enter into a franchise agreement that requires the approval 
of the City Council and a majority of the voters within the City of Goodyear; and 

F. WHEREAS, EPCOR and City agree and acknowledge that the Recitals set forth above are true and 
correct and are by this reference incorporated into the agreement herein. 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 18 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein and of the benefits to be provided 
hereunder, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Granting of Franchise Prerequisites. 

 
1. EPCOR will present the desired Franchise, as defined below, to the City's Mayor and City Council and 

file it with City Clerk after entry of a final order granting EPCOR an extension of its Certificates of 
Convenience and Necessity ("CC&Ns") by the Arizona Corporation Commission ("Commission"); that 
grants EPCOR the exclusive right to provide Utility Services within an area as described in the 
CC&Ns. 
 

2. If the City's Mayor and City Council deems the granting of the Franchise beneficial to the City, it will 
pass a resolution and thereafter submit the Franchise to the qualified electors as to whether the 
Franchise should be granted at the next regular election held in the City or at a special election 
called for approving the Franchise. The City will not call a special election for approving the 
Franchise without the consent of EPCOR. The Franchise election will be called and conducted in 
accordance with applicable law. 
 

3. EPCOR will be responsible for all costs incurred by the City for holding a general election to approve 
the Franchise, provided that such costs are not unreasonably incurred by the City. If other items, 
measures, initiatives or candidates are placed on the same ballot as the Franchise, the City will 
equitably apportion only those costs attributable to the election of the Franchise to EPCOR. 
 

4. The City will invoice the estimated cost of the general election for the Franchise ("Estimated Cost") 
within sixty (60) days after the filing of the Franchise with the Goodyear City Clerk. EPCOR will 
promptly pay the City the estimated cost within thirty (30) days after receiving the invoice. The City 
will reconcile the actual general election cost attributable to the Franchise ("Actual Cost") within 
sixty (60) days after the Franchise vote in a general election. EPCOR will promptly pay the City the 
difference between the Estimated Cost and the Actual Cost if the Actual Cost exceeds the Estimated 
Cost. The City will promptly refund EPCOR the difference between the Actual Cost and the Estimated 
Cost if the Actual Cost is less than the Estimated Cost. 

 
Franchise Agreement. 

 
1. Grant of Franchise 

 
1.1. This Franchise is hereby granted by City to EPCOR, a corporation organized and existing under 

and by virtue of the laws of Arizona, and conveys to EPCOR the right and privilege to construct, 
maintain, and operate within the present and future public rights-of-way within the boundaries 
of any of EPCOR 's CC&Ns in Goodyear, Arizona, as currently granted by the Commission or 
which the Commission may grant in the future, water delivery and wastewater collection 
systems, together with certain appurtenances including but not limited to; transmission mains, 



Page 3 of 18 
 

distribution and collection mains, service lines, fire hydrants, meters, lift stations, and 
equipment for its own use, for the purpose of supplying water and wastewater collection 
services to City, its successors, the inhabitants thereof, and all individuals and entities within or 
beyond the limits thereof (collectively, the "Served Population"), in each case for all purposes 
for which it is duly authorized by its CC&Ns ("Franchise"). 
 

1.2. The area of this Franchise shall consist of those portions within the borders of the City that are 
also within the boundaries of any of EPCOR 's CC&Ns, as currently granted by the Commission 
or which the Commission may grant in the future ("Franchised Area"). The Franchised Area as 
of the date of this Franchise provides the ability to construct, maintain and operate its system, 
as defined herein, upon, over, along, across and under the present and future public rights-of-
way. These rights-of-way include but are not limited to streets, alleys, ways and highways in the 
City of Goodyear, Arizona. This Franchise is for EPCOR's use of City's public rights-of-way to 
supply and deliver safe, adequate, and reliable water treatment, transmission, and distribution 
services, and to provide safe and reliable wastewater collection, transmission, and treatment 
services to City, its successors, the inhabitants thereof, and all individuals and entities either 
within or beyond the limits thereof, for all purposes. 

 
1.3. All such transmission mains, distribution and collection mains, and service lines shall be located 

underground unless otherwise approved by City. EPCOR shall not construct wells, well sites, 
storage, or pumping facilities in the public rights-of-way. Nothing herein shall be construed to 
permit EPCOR to maintain any portion of its water delivery or wastewater collection systems, 
or appurtenances thereto, in any manner which would adversely affect or interfere in any way, 
as determined by City in its sole discretion, with City's use of the public rights-of-way for its 
intended use; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not preclude reasonable temporary 
interference necessitated by EPCOR's repair or maintenance of those facilities. City 
acknowledges and agrees that all of EPCOR's infrastructure located within the Franchised Area 
as of the date of this Franchise complies with the foregoing or is otherwise acceptable in its 
current location to City. 

 
2. EPCOR's Compliance with Requirements; Plans Submitted for Approval; City Construction near 

EPCOR's Facilities. 
 

2.1. Within ninety (90) days after the approval of this Franchise by the Mayor and City Council, 
EPCOR shall submit to the Goodyear City Manager a map showing the true and correct location 
of all present installations of EPCOR within City's rights-of-way. 
 

2.2. The quality of water treatment, transmission, and distribution services, and of the wastewater 
collection, transmission and treatment services provided by EPCOR shall comply with the 
requirements of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality, Arizona Corporation Commission, Arizona Department of Health 
Services, and the Maricopa County Department of Environmental Health Services. 
 



Page 4 of 18 
 

2.3. All construction in such public rights-of-way under this Franchise shall be performed in 
accordance with established City practices. Before EPCOR makes any major installations in the 
public rights-of-way, EPCOR shall submit to City for approval any applicable permit applications 
and a map showing the location of such proposed installations. City and EPCOR agree and 
understand that there may be instances when EPCOR is required to make repairs that are of an 
emergency nature. EPCOR shall notify City prior to such repairs, to the extent practicable, and 
shall obtain the necessary permits in a reasonable time after notification, showing the work 
performed in the public rights-of-way. In this case, telephone notification of the repair will be 
given as soon as practicable to the contact person designated by City.   
 
(1) Notwithstanding anything else contained in this provision, EPCOR will make best efforts to 

address any emergencies within 24 hours of being notified that such emergency exists; 
with EPCOR permitted to address such emergencies with the use of temporary patches 
with metal plates so that any street closures will be released as soon as practicable.   
Should EPCOR determine, in consultation with City, that such emergency may take more 
than 24 hours to address, EPCOR will notify City of such, and provide a mutually agreeable 
timeframe by which the emergency will be addressed to City’s satisfaction.  

 
2.4. If City undertakes, either directly or through a contractor, any construction project adjacent to 

or near EPCOR's facilities operated pursuant to this Franchise and for the relocation of which 
City is required hereunder to pay, City shall include in all such construction specifications, bids, 
and contracts a requirement that as part of the cost of the project, the contractor or 
contractor's designee obtain from EPCOR the temporary or permanent removal, relocation and 
barricading of equipment, and depressurization of EPCOR's facilities or equipment, all as 
necessary to avoid the creation of an unsafe condition in view of the equipment to be utilized or 
the methods of construction to be followed by the contractor. 
 

2.5. EPCOR shall continuously maintain As-Built Drawings of its facilities located within the right-of-
way and furnish a copy electronically in a mapping format compatible with the current City 
electronic mapping format as specified by the City and if requested by City in hard copy form. 

 
3. Construction and Relocation of EPCOR’s Facilities. 

 
3.1. All facilities installed or constructed pursuant to this Franchise shall be located or relocated and 

erected as to minimize the interference with traffic or other authorized use, over, under, or 
through the public right-of-way. Those phases of construction of EPCOR's facilities relating to 
traffic control, backfilling, compaction, and paving, as well as location or relocation of facilities 
provided for herein, shall be subject to regulation by the City Council. EPCOR shall keep accurate 
records of the location of all facilities in the public right-of-way and furnish them to City upon 
request. Upon completion of new construction or relocation of underground facilities in the 
public right-of-way, EPCOR shall provide City with corrected drawings showing the actual 
location of the underground facilities in those cases where the actual location differs 
significantly from the proposed location approved in the permit plans. 

 



Page 5 of 18 
 

3.2. Upon reasonable notice by City of the proposed paving or expansion of a Public Right-of-Way, 
EPCOR shall review the City’s proposed paving plan and, if warranted in EPCOR’s judgment, 
extend or replace its facilities in order to reasonably avoid the need to subsequently cut the 
paved public right-of-way. 

 
3.3. EPCOR will bear the entire cost of relocating any of EPCOR's facilities, the relocation of which is 

necessitated by the construction of improvements by, or on behalf of, City in furtherance of a 
governmental function. City will bear the entire cost of relocating any of EPCOR’s facilities, the 
relocation of which is necessitated by the construction of improvements by, or on behalf of, City 
in furtherance of a proprietary function. 

 
3.4. If City requires EPCOR to relocate EPCOR's facilities that are located in private easements or 

private rights-of-way from which the facilities must be relocated, the entire cost of relocating 
EPCOR's facilities, including the cost of purchasing a new private easement or right-of-way, if 
necessary, shall be borne by City. City shall not be obligated to bear such costs if, prior to City's 
acquisition of such right-of-way, either, (i.) EPCOR subordinated its easement or right-of-way in 
such a manner that the person from whom City acquired the right-of-way would not have been 
obligated to bear any costs of such relocation, or (ii.) EPCOR did not in fact obtain such 
easement or right-of-way. 

 
3.5. If relocation of any of EPCOR’s facilities is required or requested due to the actions or inactions 

of any party other than the City, the third party shall be responsible for the cost of such 
relocation. 

 
3.6. City and EPCOR agree that City is not a party to disputes among permittees or other interested 

parties using the public rights-of-way. 
 
3.7. EPCOR’s operation of water delivery and wastewater collection systems is subject to Arizona law 

regarding prior rights. City reserves its prior superior rights to use the public right-of-way and 
City property, including the surface areas, for all public purposes. Provided that anything 
contained herein does not interfere with EPCOR's obligation to provide safe and reliable water 
and wastewater service, any privilege claimed under this Franchise by EPCOR in any public right-
of-way or other public property is subordinate to any: (a) prior or subsequent lawful occupancy 
or use thereof by City or any other governmental entity; (b) prior lawful occupancy or use 
thereof by any other person or entity; and (c) prior easements therein. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing subordination provision, nothing herein extinguishes or otherwise interferes with 
property rights established independently of this Franchise. When the City uses its prior superior 
right to the public rights-of-way, or other City property, EPCOR shall move its property that is 
located in the public right-of-way or on other City property at its own cost, to such location as 
City directs. 

 
3.8. If the City, at its expense, has previously required EPCOR to relocate its facilities in a particular 

area, and EPCOR desires to again relocate these facilities, EPCOR shall bear the entire cost of 
such relocation. 



Page 6 of 18 
 

 
3.9. If City relocates and/or participates in the cost of relocating EPCOR's facilities for any reason, the 

cost of relocation to City shall not include any additional cost resulting from any upgrade or 
improvement of EPCOR's facilities as they existed prior to relocation. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if EPCOR requests, in connection with any such relocation by City, any upgrade or 
improvement of the affected EPCOR's facilities, City will in good faith consider such request, 
subject in each case to EPCOR's agreement to pay for the actual, additional costs up front prior 
to any upgrade or improvement for the requested upgrade or improvement. City will deliver to 
EPCOR documentation reasonably satisfactory to EPCOR to evidence the actual, additional cost 
of such upgrades and improvements. In no event shall City be responsible for considering or 
undertaking an upgrade or improvement to any of EPCOR facilities being relocated by City if 
doing so would adversely affect City’s schedules for completion. 

 
3.10. All underground abandoned lines shall continue to remain the property of EPCOR, unless EPCOR 

specifically acknowledges otherwise to the City Engineer and such is accepted by City. EPCOR 
shall remove, at EPCOR's sole cost, abandoned lines at the request of City when required to 
facilitate construction of any municipal project or as City determines is reasonably necessary to 
protect public health and safety. EPCOR may contract with City contractor for such removal. 
Prior to removal of any abandoned lines, EPCOR shall notify City of its intent to remove 
abandoned lines and offer possession of said lines to City. EPCOR shall identify the location of 
any known abandoned lines as they exist at the time this Franchise is granted through 
recognized industry means. EPCOR shall further identify the location of any lines that become 
abandoned during the term of this Franchise in a like manner. 

 
3.11. Subject to the provisions of this section regarding the cost of relocation of EPCOR's facilities, 

EPCOR's right to retain its facilities in their original location is subject to the paramount right of 
City to use its public rights-of-way for all permitted purposes, including without limitation, to 
carry out its governmental functions. All functions of City, which are not specifically determined 
by law to be proprietary, are governmental. City’s permitted purposes shall include, but in no 
way shall be limited to the following: 

i. Any and all improvement to City streets, alleys, and avenues; 
ii. Establishing and maintaining sanitary sewers, storm drains, drainage structures, and 

related facilities; 
iii. Establishing and maintaining parks, parkways, pedestrian malls, or grass, shrubs, trees, 

and other vegetation for the purpose of landscaping any street or public property; 
iv. Providing fire protection and public safety functions; 
v. Collection and disposal of garbage, solid waste, bulk trash and recyclables; 

vi. Providing public transportation; 
vii. Operating City utilities; 

viii. Any structures for public purposes deemed appropriate by the Mayor and Council of 
City; 

ix. Any structure for any purpose, whether governmental or proprietary, which City is 
authorized to construct and/or maintain; 



Page 7 of 18 
 

x. Where City’s facilities or other facilities occupying a right-of-way under authority of a 
City permit or license are already located in the right-of-way and a conflict between, 
EPCOR’s potential facilities and the existing facilities can only be resolved expeditiously 
as determined by the Goodyear City Engineer by relocating the existing City or 
permittee facilities, EPCOR shall bear the entire cost of relocating the existing facilities, 
irrespective of the function they served. 
 

4. Restoration of Rights of Way. 
 

4.1. Whenever EPCOR shall cause any work, opening, or alteration whatsoever to be made for any 
purpose in any City public right-of- way, the work shall be completed with due diligence within a 
reasonably prompt time; and EPCOR shall, upon completion of such work, restore the disturbed 
property to the same or a substantially similar condition as it was prior to such openings or 
alteration, and EPCOR shall provide any barricades, signing, rerouting of traffic, or other actions 
which City shall consider necessary or desirable in the interest of public safety during any such 
opening or alteration within the public right-of-way. 
 
(1) To the extent EPCOR is undertaking any operations and maintenance or capital 

improvement projects on a permanent (i.e., non-emergency) basis, EPCOR will consult and 
coordinate with City on a regular basis to best ensure that any rights-of-way that have 
been disturbed as the result of such work have been completely restored to the City’s 
satisfaction, and pursuant to a mutually-agreeable schedule for restoration of such rights-
of-way.   EPCOR will comply with all applicable traffic control regulations in effect, 
including placement of updated barricade permits where required or as requested by City.  

 
4.2. If EPCOR causes damage to pavement, sidewalks, driveways, landscaping, or other property 

during construction, installation, or repair of its facilities, EPCOR or its authorized agent shall 
replace and restore such places as nearly as possible to its original condition that existed before 
the damage occurred. If the repair, replacement or restoration cannot replicate the site's 
original condition, EPCOR shall return the site to a condition that approximates the original 
condition and compensate the City for any difference. All repair and restoration necessary to 
meet the requirements set forth in this Section shall be at EPCOR's expense and shall be 
conducted in a manner acceptable to the City, in its sole discretion. EPCOR agrees to restore 
pavement or sidewalks after any pavement or sidewalk cuts done by EPCOR. 
 

4.3. In addition to any indemnity obligation under this Franchise, whenever the installation, use, 
maintenance, removal, or relocation of any of EPCOR facilities are required or permitted 
hereunder, and such installation, removal, or relocation damages or disturbs the surface or 
subsurface of any right-of-way, public property or any public improvement that may be located 
thereon, therein, or thereunder, however such damage or disturbance was caused, EPCOR, at its 
sole cost and expense, shall promptly restore the surface or subsurface of the right-of-way or 
public property and/or will repair or replace the surface, subsurface and/or public improvement 
thereon, therein, or thereunder, in as good a condition as before in accordance with applicable 
laws, normal wear and tear excepted, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Goodyear City 



Page 8 of 18 
 

Engineer. If EPCOR does not repair the damage or disturbance as required, then City shall have 
the option, upon ten (10) business days prior written notice to EPCOR, to perform or cause to be 
performed such reasonable and necessary work on behalf of EPCOR and to charge EPCOR for 
the proposed costs to be incurred or the actual costs incurred by City at City's standard rates 
plus a ten percent (10%) administration fee. 
 

4.4. In the event of a public emergency, the City shall have the right to immediately perform, 
without prior written notice to EPCOR, such reasonable and necessary work on behalf of EPCOR 
to repair and return public property to a safe and satisfactory condition in accordance with 
applicable laws, normal wear and tear excepted, reasonably satisfactory to the Goodyear City 
Engineer. The City shall provide written notice to EPCOR of the repairs as soon as practicable 
after the work has begun. EPCOR agrees that any damaged City-owned conduit or fiber must be 
replaced or repaired and restored with new or like-new materials. If the City needs to perform 
any part of the necessary repairs, relocation and/or removal work, it shall be entitled to seek 
payment for such repairs and/or relocation and/or removal costs from EPCOR. Upon the receipt 
of a demand for payment by City, EPCOR shall reimburse City within thirty (30) days for such 
costs in accordance with the City's fee schedule in place at the time the work is performed. In 
the event of a public emergency, neither the City nor any agent, contractor or employee of the 
City shall be liable to EPCOR or its contractors or its customers or other third parties for any 
harm so caused to them by the reasonable actions of the City or its agents, contractors or 
employees in reasonably responding to such public emergency. When practical and if possible, 
City will consult with EPCOR in advance to assess the necessity of such actions and to minimize, 
to the extent practical under the circumstances, damage to and disruption of either the public 
property involved or EPCOR' s facilities involved. 
 

4.5. If any of EPCOR's facilities or activities present any immediate hazard or impediment to the 
public, to the City, to other City improvements or activities within or outside of the right-of-way, 
or to City's ability to safely and conveniently operate the right-of-way or perform City's utility, 
public safety and/or other public health, safety and welfare functions, then EPCOR shall 
immediately remedy the hazard, comply with City's request to secure the right-of-way area, and 
otherwise cooperate with City at no expense to City to remove any such hazard or impediment. 
 

5. Indemnification and Insurance. 
 

5.1.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, EPCOR agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
City and any of its departments, agencies, officers, employees, elected officials, and 
representatives from all damages, claims, or liabilities (including without limitation: personal 
injury, death, and property damage) and expenses (including attorney’s fees) only to the extent 
arising out of, or resulting from: (i) EPCOR’s performance or failure to perform the services 
required of EPCOR under the terms of this Franchise; (ii) the negligent or intentional acts, 
errors, mistakes, or omissions, of EPCOR, its officers, employees, or others for whose acts that 
EPCOR may be legally liable; or (iii) any injury or damage to any third-party or third-party 
property from the performance, work, and/or exercise of this Franchise by EPCOR, including 
without limitation, third-party consequential damages. 



Page 9 of 18 
 

 
5.2. EPCOR shall obtain, maintain at all times, and provide proof of such to City upon request, the 

following insurance: 
 
(1) Commercial General Liability in the amount of FIVE MILLION Dollars ($5,000,000) per 
occurrence and in annual aggregate for liability arising from bodily injury (including death), 
property damage (including loss of use), and personal injury.  Such policy shall also include 
provision for blanket contractual liability and products-completed operations liability subject to 
a $5,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate limit.  Where an umbrella or excess policy is 
in effect, terms shall be follow-form to this Commercial General Liability policy.  EPCOR shall 
provide City with additional insured status for liability arising from its operations, and thirty 
(30) days’ written notice of any policy cancellation or condition that creates a deficiency in the 
requirements stated herein; 
 
(2) Automobile Liability applicable to all vehicles owned, leased, licensed, hired, or operated by 
EPCOR in the amount of FIVE MILLION Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence applicable to 
property damage and/or bodily injury liability; 
(3) Workers’ Compensation covering all employees of EPCOR per Arizona statutory 
requirements; and 
 
(4) Employer’s Liability in the amount of ONE MILLION Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident, per 
disease, each employee. 
 

5.3. General conditions applicable to all required policies of insurance: 
 
(1) EPCOR shall file with City the required certificates of insurance, which clearly state the 
policy number; insurer; licensed agent; insured; policy expiration date; specific coverage 
amounts; and that no policy of required insurance will be canceled without providing thirty (30) 
days prior notice of cancellation to City; 
 
(2) The insurance carried by EPCOR shall be primary and non-contributory to any other valid or 
collectible insurance that City may possess, including any self-insured retention City may have; 
and any other insurance City does possess shall be considered excess insurance only and shall 
not be required to contribute with this insurance; 
 
(3) All policies of insurance required by EPCOR hereunder shall be with insurers who are 
licensed and authorized to do business in the State of Arizona with a financial rating of at least 
A- in A.M. Best & Company's Insurance Guide; 
 
(4) To the fullest extent permitted by law, all such insurance policies, except Workers' 
Compensation, for claims arising out of the performance of this Franchise shall insure the City, 
its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees as additional insureds; 
and 
 



Page 10 of 18 
 

(5) The insurers of policies required by EPCOR hereunder shall waive all rights of subrogation 
against City, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees for any 
claims arising out of the EPCOR's acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work, or service. 

 
6. Franchise Fee. 

 
6.1. EPCOR agrees to pay City as consideration of the grant of this Franchise a sum equal to three 

percent (3%) of the Gross Receipts, as defined below, of EPCOR from the sale of water or the 
collection of wastewater by EPCOR within the Franchised Area, as shown by EPCOR's billing 
records (the "Franchise Fee"). The Franchise Fee shall be due and payable within thirty (30) 
days after the end of each of the City’s fiscal quarters and shall be in lieu of all fees or charges 
for permits issued for the construction of EPCOR's facilities hereunder or for the inspection 
thereof.  
 

6.2. "Gross Receipts" or "Gross Revenues" means all cash, credits, property of any kind or nature, 
or other consideration, less related bad debt not to exceed one and one-half percent (1.5%) 
annually, that is received directly or indirectly by EPCOR, its affiliates, subsidiaries or parent or 
any person, firm or corporation in which EPCOR has a financial interest or that has a financial 
interest in EPCOR and that is derived in whole or in part from EPCOR's provision of water or 
wastewater services to its end-use customers within the franchise boundaries in the City. 

 
6.3. For the purpose of verifying the quarterly amount payable hereunder, the books and records of 

EPCOR shall be subject to inspection by duly authorized officers or representatives of City upon 
sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to EPCOR. In the event that such inspection evidences that 
the Franchise Fee actually paid for the current quarter is more than ten percent (10%) below 
the amount that should have been paid for such quarter, EPCOR shall reimburse City for the 
costs of such inspection.  

 
6.4. The amount payable under the Franchise Fee shall not be reduced and is in addition to the 

payment of any general ad valorem taxes, assessments for special improvements, general sales 
or transaction privilege license taxes or any similar general sales or transaction privilege license 
taxes or any similar general tax or levy assessed or levied by City or any other governmental 
unit with jurisdiction. 
 

7. Franchise Fee Audit. 
 

7.1. Upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to EPCOR, City may inspect EPCOR’s records of 
previous annual or quarterly gross revenues, and City shall have the right to audit any amounts 
determined to be payable under this Franchise; provided, however, that such audit must take 
place within thirty-six (36) months following the close of EPCOR’s fiscal year for which the audit 
is desired. All audit costs shall be borne by City. 
 

7.2. Upon completion of an audit, City shall provide EPCOR with written notice including a copy of 
the audit report and setting forth any additional amounts due to City identified in the audit. 



Page 11 of 18 
 

EPCOR shall pay any deficiency within thirty (30) days following such written notice. If a City 
audit shows overpayments, City shall promptly pay EPCOR the overpaid amount. 

 
7.3. If EPCOR determines in an internal audit that it overpaid Franchise Fees, EPCOR may request a 

reduction in the following quarterly Franchise Fee payment(s) by submitting a written claim for 
reduction for the overpaid Franchise Fees along with the audit report and calculations detailing 
the overpayment. A written claim for reduction must identify; (i) the specific Franchise Fee 
period(s) involved, including the period of overpayment and any period for which a reduction in 
payment is sought, (ii) the itemized Franchise Fee made to City for the associated period and 
(iii) the dollar amount of the reduction requested. No reduction shall be allowed for those 
Franchise Fees paid more than thirty-six (36) months following the close of the City’s fiscal year 
for which a reduction is sought. 

 
7.4. In no event shall interest accrue or EPCOR be entitled to interest or late fees on over paid 

amounts. 
 

8. Term. 
 

8.1. The Effective Date of this Franchise shall be the first day of the calendar month immediately 
following the calendar month in which this Franchise is approved by a majority vote of the 
qualified voters of the City of Goodyear. This Franchise shall continue and exist for a period of 
twenty- five (25) years from the Effective Date. 
 

8.2. Unless terminated earlier by written agreement of the parties this Franchise will expire on the 
twenty-fifth (25th) anniversary of the Effective Date. EPCOR shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local laws and ordinances, including those that may come into being, in its exercise of 
Franchise rights during the term of this Franchise. 

 
8.3. Both the City and EPCOR shall negotiate in good faith any request by either party to amend this 

Franchise. This Franchise may only be modified by a written amendment signed by persons duly 
authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of City and EPCOR. 
 

9. Default and Dispute Resolution. 
  

9.1. Failure or unreasonable delay by EPCOR or City to perform any term or provision of this 
Franchise for a period of ten (10) City business days after written notice thereof from the other 
party shall constitute a default under this Franchise. If the default is of a nature, which is not 
capable of being cured within ten (10) City business days, the cure shall be commenced within 
such period, and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the 
alleged default and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of 
a default hereunder by EPCOR or City, the non-defaulting party may resort to all remedies 
available at both law and in equity including, without limitation, specific performance and 
injunction. However, no indirect, special, consequential, incidental, punitive, or exemplary 



Page 12 of 18 
 

damages may be sought from or awarded against either EPCOR or City, except as may otherwise 
be expressly permitted in this Franchise. 

   
9.2. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this Franchise, City and EPCOR each 

shall designate and appoint a representative to act as a liaison between City and its various 
departments and EPCOR. The initial representative for City (the "City Representative") shall be 
the City Manager or their designee, the initial representative for EPCOR shall be identified by 
EPCOR from time to time (the "EPCOR Representative"). The representatives shall be available 
at all reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties and the 
development of property. 
 
(1) In case of a default, as that term is defined in Section 9.1, by EPCOR, EPCOR will maintain an 

open line of communication and dialogue with City as to its attempts to cure the default and 
an estimated timeframe by which City can expect such default to be cured.  The EPCOR 
Representative will be an EPCOR employee at least at the level of EPCOR’s Director of 
Operations for the district that covers all systems and facilities within the incorporated 
boundaries of City.  To the extent the City believes that it is not receiving satisfactory 
responses or commitment to a particular default, City is authorized to contact EPCOR’s Vice 
President of Arizona Operations, to which that individual will then serve as the EPCOR 
Representative for the limited purposes of addressing such concerns for that particular 
default only, and where the EPCOR Representative will revert back to the current designee 
once that particular default is addressed to the satisfaction of both Parties.   

 
9.3. Any and all controversies, claims, or disputes that arise out of or relate to this Franchise, or the 

breach thereof, and if the controversy, claim, or dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, 
the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the controversy, claim, or dispute by 
mediation, formal or informal, before resorting to binding arbitration or litigation filed in a court 
of competent jurisdiction applying Arizona law located in Maricopa County, Arizona.  
 

9.4. In the event that EPCOR and City cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven (7) 
days, either EPCOR or City may request a presiding judge of the Superior Court to assign a 
mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool. 
 

10. Non-Exclusive. 
  

10.1. This Franchise is not exclusive, and nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent City 
from granting other like or similar grants or privileges to any other person, firm, or corporation. 
 

11. Transfer of Franchise. 
 

11.1. The right, privilege, and franchise hereby granted may be transferred in whole or in part by 
EPCOR, its successors and assigns, to any public service corporation approved by the 
Commission to provide public utility water or wastewater collection services within the 
Franchised Area and upon payment of an appropriate transfer fee to City to reimburse City for 



Page 13 of 18 
 

any reasonable costs it incurs in processing the transfer. No other assignment of any rights, 
privileges or franchise hereby granted may be made without the prior written consent of both 
the City Council and the Commission and payment of an appropriate transfer fee to City to 
reimburse City for any reasonable costs it incurs in processing the transfer. The City Council's 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. No consent shall be 
required in connection with an assignment made as security pursuant to a mortgage or deed of 
trust or in connection with subsequent transfer made pursuant to any such instrument. 
 

12. Condemnation Rights Reserved by City. 
 

12.1. City reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn any water or wastewater plant, 
equipment, properties, facilities and/or distribution facilities of EPCOR within the corporate 
limits or any additions and annexations thereto, as provided by law. EPCOR likewise reserves all 
of its rights and remedies provided by law in any such circumstance. 
 

12.2. In the event of a purchase of EPCOR, or under the exercises of eminent domain, this Franchise 
shall be construed to have no value for purposes of establishing the value of EPCOR. 
 

13. Title to Facilities, Use of Easements. 
 

13.1. Title to all water and wastewater utility facilities wherever situated on public grounds or in 
easements for the provision of water and wastewater public utility services acquired or installed 
by EPCOR or its agents or contractors within its service territory shall be and remain property of 
EPCOR, its successors, or assigns. 

 
13.2. Nothing contained in this Franchise shall be construed as preventing, diminishing, or restricting 

EPCOR from using for public utility purposes any easement shown on any plat or plats of any 
portion of City before or hereafter platted or recorded that has been or may hereafter be 
created, granted, or dedicated for public utility purposes by any person, firm, or corporation. 
The costs associated with such use shall be borne by EPCOR. 
 
 
 

14. Applicable Laws and Regulations. 
 

14.1. EPCOR is responsible to adhere to all applicable Federal and State laws, municipal ordinances, 
and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over EPCOR's activities in the 
rights-of-way, including but not limited to, storm water regulations (MS4), US Army Corps of 
Engineers permitting, Americans with Disabilities Act, and appropriate traffic control measures. 
 
 
 
 

15. Conflict of Interest. 



Page 14 of 18 
 

 
15.1. This Franchise shall be subject to cancellation pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §38- 511 in 

the event of a conflict of interest. 
 

16. Notices. 
 

16.1. All notices required to be given to either party shall be sent or given as follows to the following 
addresses: 

To City:   City of Goodyear, Arizona 
   Goodyear, AZ 85395 
   1900 North Civic Square 
   Attn: City Manager 
 
With a copy to:  City of Goodyear City Attorney 
   1900 North Civic Square 
   Goodyear, AZ 85395 
 
To EPCOR:  EPCOR Water Arizona Inc., 

2355 West Pinnacle Peak Road, Suite 300  
Phoenix, AZ 85027 

With a copy to:  Thomas Loquvam, Esq. 
   General Counsel and Vice President 
   2355 West Pinnacle Peak Road, Suite 300 
   Phoenix, AZ 85027 
   Email: tloquvam@epcor.com 
 

17. Arizona State Law to Govern. 
 

17.1. The provisions of this Franchise shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Arizona. 
 

18. EPCOR’s Representations and Warranties. 
 

18.1. EPCOR represents and warrants that it has the power and authority to enter into this Franchise 
by and through the representative who has signed this Franchise on its behalf, and that it has 
the power and ability to do all the acts required of it by this Franchise. 

 
18.2. EPCOR has not misrepresented or omitted material facts, has not accepted this Franchise with 

intent to act contrary to the provisions herein, and represents and warrants that, as long as it 
operates its utility system, it will be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise or any 
subsequently issued license. 

 



Page 15 of 18 
 

18.3. EPCOR further acknowledges that it was represented throughout the negotiations of this 
Franchise by its own attorneys and had opportunity to consult with its own attorneys about its 
rights and obligations regarding this Franchise Agreement.  
 

18.4. EPCOR, as a public service corporation regulated by the Arizona Corporation Commission, is 
obligated to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater service to all its customers in 
accordance with Arizona law, including those customers residing or doing business within the 
incorporated boundaries of City.  EPCOR commits to providing at least the same level of water 
and wastewater service to its customers located within City as City provides to its water and 
wastewater customers.  EPCOR understands and acknowledges that, as a regulated entity, City, 
its residents or businesses may file a complaint with the Arizona Corporation Commission 
alleging inadequate service, in accordance with Commission rules and regulations and Arizona 
law, including under A.R.S. § 40-246; provide however, that City understands and agrees that 
this provision does not give rise to any independent cause of action not otherwise authorized 
under Arizona law. 
 

19. Severability. 
 

19.1. If any section, paragraph, clause, phrase or provision of the franchise shall be adjudged invalid 
or unconstitutional, other than Section 6 or any portion thereof, the same shall not affect the 
validity of the Franchise as a whole or any part of the provisions hereof other than the part so 
adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional. If Section 6 shall be adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional in whole or in part by a final judgment, the Franchise shall immediately 
terminate and shall be of no further force or effect. 
 

20. Force Majeure.  
 

20.1. EPCOR shall not be held in default under, or in noncompliance with, the provisions of this 
Franchise, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to noncompliance or default (including 
termination, cancellation, or revocation of this Franchise) where such alleged noncompliance or 
default occurred or was caused by an act of God, an act or omission of governmental, military or 
civilian authority, strike or lockout, riot, epidemic or quarantine, war, earthquake, fire, flood, 
tidal wave, unusually severe rain, wind, or snow storm, hurricane, tornado or other catastrophic 
act of nature, labor disputes, terrorist acts, governmental, administrative or judicial order or 
regulation or other circumstances that could not have been avoided through EPCOR's exercise 
of reasonable care, prudence and diligence. 
 

20.2. Furthermore, the City and EPCOR hereby agree that it is not the City's intention to subject 
EPCOR to penalties, fines, forfeitures, or revocation of the Franchise for immaterial breaches or 
violations of this Franchise Agreement. "Immaterial" breaches or violations of this Agreement 
may include, but are not limited to instances or for matters: (i) where a violation or a breach by 
EPCOR of the Franchise was a good faith error that resulted in minimal or no negative impact on 
the Citizens (i.e., a resident or inhabitant) within the Franchised Area; (ii) where strict 



Page 16 of 18 
 

performance with the terms of the Franchise would result in practical difficulties and hardship 
to EPCOR that outweigh the benefit to be derived by the City and/or Citizens. 
 

21. Expiration. 
  

21.1. City and EPCOR hereby expressly agree that the following provision shall survive the termination 
or expiration of this Franchise; upon the termination or expiration of the Franchise, if EPCOR 
shall not have acquired and accepted an extension or renewal hereof, EPCOR may remove their 
facilities and systems within the Franchised Area or, at EPCOR’s option, may continue operating 
EPCOR’s facilities and systems within the Franchised Area under the same terms and conditions 
contained herein, but EPCOR shall be required to obtain proper permits each time EPCOR makes 
additional extensions upon, over, along, across, and under the public right-of-way within the 
City of Goodyear unless or until such time as a new franchise is obtained or the systems and 
facilities are removed or are acquired by City through the exercise of its powers of eminent 
domain. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  



Page 17 of 18 
 

 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF GOODYEAR, an Arizona municipal 
corporation  
 
 
By:       
Wynette Reed 
City Manager      
Date:      

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA 
County of Maricopa  
 

On this ________ day of ____________________, 20__, before me personally appeared 
Wynette Reed, the City Manager for the City of Goodyear, an Arizona municipal corporation, for 
and on behalf thereof, whose identity was proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person who he or she claims to be, and acknowledged that he or she signed the 
above/attached document.   
 
 
[Affix notary seal here] 

 
  

      Notary Public 
  



Page 18 of 18 
 

EPCOR: 
 
EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., 
an Arizona corporation 

By: ___________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
Date: _________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA 
County of ______________  
 
On this ________ day of ____________________, 20___, before me personally appeared 
_________________________  as the _________________________ of EPCOR Water Arizona 
Inc., an Arizona corporation, for and on behalf thereof, whose identity was proven to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who he or she claims to be, and acknowledged 
that he or she signed the above/attached document.   
 
 
[Affix notary seal here] 

__________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 



ITEM #: 10. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2275

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH LIBERTY

UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP.
FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD MAY 20, 2025
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Roric Massey, City Attorney

SUMMARY
This franchise agreement grants Liberty Utilities (Litchfield Park Water and Sewer) Corp.
(“Liberty”) the right to construct, maintain and operate water distribution facilities and
wastewater collection facilities within rights-of-way located within the City of Goodyear to
provide water services and wastewater collection services in those areas designated by the
Arizona Corporation Commission. The franchise agreement would be approved or rejected by
the qualified electors of the City of Goodyear at the May 20, 2025, Special Election.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2432 APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR AND LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK
WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND PLACING THE
APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT OF A SPECIAL
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025 THAT GRANTS LIBERTY UTILITIES
(LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS,
THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE
UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF
GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE ADDITIONS THERETO, WATER DELIVERY AND
WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS WITH ALL NECESSARY APPURTENANCES,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUPPLYING WATER AND COLLECTING WASTEWATER TO THE
CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, AND PERSONS AND
CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE LIMITS THEREOF, FOR ALL
PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN
RESPECT THERETO. (Roric Massey, City Attorney) 



FISCAL IMPACT
This franchise agreement requires Liberty to pay the City of Goodyear three percent (3%) of
the gross profits of the sale of water services or wastewater collection services within the
boundaries of the city as a franchise fee. Currently, Liberty does not have a license agreement
or a franchise agreement to install infrastructure in the right-of-way and has not paid either a
license fee or a franchise fee to the City. Under the franchise agreement Liberty will also be
responsible for paying permit fees to the city for the installation of their water or wastewater
facilities. However, Liberty will deduct the total amount in permit fees paid to the city for all
permit fees paid to install their infrastructure within the city right-of-way. The city could collect
approximately $75,000 annually in franchise fee payments from Liberty prior to any deductions
for permit fees paid.  Costs associated with the special election have been included as a part
of the FY2025 budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Liberty is a regulated water and wastewater, company providing local water service and
wastewater collection and treatment service within the City of Goodyear as well as Litchfield
Park, Avondale, Buckeye, Glendale, Goodyear, and unincorporated Maricopa County. Liberty
previously operated within Goodyear under the name Litchfield Park Water and Sewer
Corporation. Liberty has been providing water service and wastewater collection and treatment
services within the City of Goodyear without a license or franchise agreement and now intends
to enter into a franchise agreement with the city.  

STAFF ANALYSIS
Franchise agreements are authorized by the Arizona Constitution and the Goodyear City
Charter. Franchise agreements are important because they provide stability and help the City
of Goodyear effectively plan for the future in coordination with public utility companies. The
city currently has franchise agreements with Arizona Public Service (APS) for the provision of
electrical services and Southwest Gas for the provision of natural gas services.

This franchise agreement is a contract between the City of Goodyear and Liberty. The
franchise agreement gives Liberty a non-exclusive right to use the city's streets, alleys, and
other public rights-of-way to construct, maintain, and operate their water distribution and
wastewater collection facilities within the rights-of-way safely and efficiently in order to serve
their customers within the City of Goodyear. The city will collect a three percent (3%) franchise
fee for Liberty’s provision of water distribution and wastewater collection services provided to
customers within the City of Goodyear. Liberty is responsible for the installation and
maintenance of its infrastructure at its own cost and shall be required to relocate their
infrastructure when the city constructs improvements to or within the right-of-way. The
franchise agreement also ensures Liberty is using rights-of-way safely and efficiently and they
comply with city regulations. Within the franchise agreement, Liberty commits to designing,
constructing and completing any projects in a timely fashion and in partnership with the City.
Liberty will consult and coordinate with City on a regular basis to ensure emergencies,
damage mitigation, traffic control, or defaults are addressed to the best of their ability.
 
The Arizona Constitution requires that voters in the city approve a municipal franchise
agreement. Liberty will be responsible for costs incurred by the City for holding a general
election to approve this franchise agreement and the City will equitably apportion only those
costs attributable to the election of this franchise agreement to Liberty if other items are on the
ballot. If approved by a majority of the voters at the May 20, 2025 Special Election, this
franchise agreement will be effective for a term of 25-years, which is the maximum allowed by



the Arizona Constitution, and will go into effect June 1, 2025. Unless terminated earlier by a
written agreement this franchise agreement will be effective through May 30, 2050.

Attachments
Resolution with Exhibit A 



Resolution No. 2024-2432 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2432 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR AND LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND PLACING THE APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT ON THE BALLOT OF A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 20, 2025 
THAT GRANTS LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN AND OPERATE UPON, OVER, AND/OR ALONG THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN 
THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, AND FUTURE ADDITIONS THERETO, WATER 
DELIVERY AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS WITH ALL NECESSARY 
APPURTENANCES, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUPPLYING WATER AND COLLECTING 
WASTEWATER TO THE CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, AND 
PERSONS AND CORPORATIONS EITHER WITHIN OR BEYOND THE LIMITS THEREOF, 
FOR ALL PURPOSES, PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, DUTIES, TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS IN RESPECT THERETO. 
… 
WHEREAS, Liberty Utilities (Litchfield Park Water and Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty”) has a certificate 
of convenience and necessity issued by the Arizona Corporation Commission to provide utility 
services within the boundaries of the City of Goodyear; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Liberty have not previously entered into a license or franchise agreement 
to regulate usage of the public right-of-way; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Liberty have negotiated a twenty-five (25) year franchise agreement that 
will regulate Liberty's usage of the public rights-of-way provision of water distribution and 
wastewater collection services within the City Goodyear's boundaries; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City's electors will consider the proposed franchise agreement in the May 20, 
2025, Special Election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the public's interest to enter into the proposed 
franchise agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. In compliance with the City of Goodyear Charter Article XII, Section I, and 

Arizona Revised Statute §9-502(B), the City Council finds that entering into the 
proposed franchise agreement with Liberty Utilities (Litchfield Park Water and 
Sewer) Corp., (attached as Exhibit A), is beneficial to the community and the 
proposed franchise agreement is approved for submission to the electors of the 
community for approval at the Special Election scheduled for May 20, 2025; and 
 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk and City Attorney are directed to comply with all applicable legal 
requirements in the publication and referral of the proposed franchise agreement 
to the electors of the community; and 
 



Resolution No. 2024-2432 
Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 3. The Council authorizes the Mayor to execute all documents, under the terms 
detailed in the attached franchise agreement upon approval of the franchise by 
the electors of the community; and 
 

SECTION 3. The Legal Department is authorized to add necessary exhibits and to make 
necessary language changes that do not alter the substantive or essential terms 
of the agreement in compliance with the City Charter or Arizona statutory law; 
and 
 

SECTION 4. Resolution 2024-2432 shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP. 
AND 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 
 
 

(On the following pages) 



Page 1 of 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP. 
AND 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA 
 

 
This, FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN LIBERTY UTILITIES CORP. AND THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, 
ARIZONA is made by CITY OF GOODYEAR, an Arizona municipal corporation (“City”), and LIBERTY 
UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP. an Arizona corporation, or its successors and 
assigns (''LIBERTY"). 
 
 

RECITALS: 
 

 
A. WHEREAS, LIBERTY represents and warrants to the City that it is a public service corporation 

within the meaning of Article 15, Section 2, of the Arizona Constitution and is authorized to 
provide water and wastewater collection services within portions of Maricopa County, Arizona, 
in accordance with a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity issued by the Arizona Corporation 
Commission; and 

B. WHEREAS, LIBERTY will own, operate and maintain a public water and wastewater system 
within the City limits of Goodyear, Arizona; and 

C. WHEREAS, LIBERTY, as a public service corporation, is dedicated to providing safe and reliable 
service to all its customers including those within the City of Goodyear, commits to providing a 
highest level of utility service to its water and wastewater customers at level on par or 
exceeding that provided by the City; and 

D. WHEREAS, LIBERTY commits to designing, constructing and completing any capital improvement 
and operations and maintenance projects, including emergency projects, in a timely fashion and 
in partnership with the City; and 

E. WHEREAS, LIBERTY and City desire to enter into a franchise agreement that requires the 
approval of the City Council and a majority of the voters within the City of Goodyear; and 

F. WHEREAS, LIBERTY and City agree and acknowledge that the Recitals set forth above are true 
and correct and are by this reference incorporated into the agreement herein. 



Page 2 of 18 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein and of the benefits to be provided 
hereunder, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Granting of Franchise Prerequisites. 

 
1. LIBERTY will present the desired Franchise, as defined below, to the City's Mayor and City Council 

and file it with the Goodyear City Clerk after entry of a final order granting LIBERTY an extension of 
its Certificates of Convenience and Necessity ("CC&N") by the Arizona Corporation Commission 
("Commission"); that grants LIBERTY the exclusive right to provide Utility Services in an area within 
as described in the CC&Ns. 
 

2. If the City's Mayor and City Council deems the granting of the Franchise beneficial to the City, it will 
pass a resolution and thereafter submit the Franchise to the qualified electors as to whether the 
Franchise should be granted at the next regular election held in the City or at a special election 
called for approving the Franchise. The City will not call a special election for approving the 
Franchise without the consent of LIBERTY. The Franchise election will be called and conducted in 
accordance with applicable law. 
 

3. LIBERTY will be responsible for all costs incurred by the City for holding a general election to approve 
the Franchise, provided that such costs are not unreasonably incurred by the City. If other items, 
measures, initiatives, or candidates are placed on the same ballot as the Franchise, the City will 
equitably apportion only those costs attributable to the election of the Franchise to LIBERTY. 
 

4. The City will invoice the estimated cost of the general election for the Franchise ("Estimated Cost") 
within sixty (60) days after the filing of the Franchise with the Goodyear City Clerk. LIBERTY will 
promptly pay the City the estimated cost within forty-five (45) days after receiving the invoice. The 
City will reconcile the actual general election cost attributable to the Franchise ("Actual Cost") 
within sixty (60) days after the Franchise vote in a general election. LIBERTY will promptly pay the 
City the difference between the Estimated Cost and the Actual Cost if the Actual Cost exceeds the 
Estimated Cost. The City will promptly refund LIBERTY the difference between the Actual Cost and 
the Estimated Cost if the Actual Cost is less than the Estimated Cost. 

 
Franchise Agreement. 

 
1. Grant of Franchise 

 
1.1. This Franchise is hereby granted by City to LIBERTY, a corporation organized and existing under 

and by virtue of the laws of Arizona, and conveys to LIBERTY the right and privilege to construct, 
maintain, and operate within the present and future public rights-of-way within the boundaries 
of any of LIBERTY 's then effective CC&Ns, as granted by the Commission in Goodyear, Arizona, 
potable water delivery and wastewater collection systems, together with certain appurtenances 



Page 3 of 18 
 

including but not limited to; transmission mains, distribution and collection mains, service lines, 
fire hydrants, meters, lift stations, and equipment for its own use, for the purpose of supplying 
water and wastewater services to City, its successors, the inhabitants thereof, and all individuals 
and entities within or beyond the limits thereof (collectively, the "Served Population"), in each 
case for all purposes for which it is duly authorized by its CC&N ("Franchise"). 

 
1.2. The area of this Franchise shall consist of those portions within the borders of the City that are 

also within the boundaries of any of LIBERTY 's then effective CC&Ns, as granted by the 
Commission ("Franchised Area"). The Franchised Area as of the date of this Franchise provides 
the ability to construct, maintain and operate its system, upon, over, along, across and under 
the present and future public rights-of-way. These rights-of-way include but are not limited to 
streets, alleys, ways and highways in the City Goodyear, Arizona. This Franchise is for LIBERTY's 
use of City's public rights-of-way to supply and deliver safe, adequate, and reliable water 
treatment, transmission, and distribution services, and to provide safe and reliable wastewater 
collection, transmission and treatment services to City, its successors, the inhabitants thereof, 
and all individuals and entities either within or beyond the limits thereof, for all purposes. 

 
1.3. All such transmission mains, distribution and collection mains, and service lines shall be located 

underground unless otherwise approved by City. LIBERTY shall not construct wells, well sites, 
storage, or pumping facilities in the public rights-of-way. Nothing herein shall be construed to 
permit LIBERTY to maintain any portion of its potable water delivery system or wastewater 
collection system, or appurtenances thereto, in any manner which would adversely affect or 
interfere in any way, as determined by City in its sole discretion, with City's use of the public 
rights-of-way for its intended use; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not preclude 
reasonable temporary interference necessitated by LIBERTY's repair or maintenance of those 
facilities. City acknowledges and agrees that all of LIBERTY's infrastructure located within the 
Franchised Area as of the date of this Franchise complies with the foregoing or is otherwise 
acceptable in its current location to City. 
 

2. LIBERTY's Compliance with Requirements; Plans Submitted for Approval; City Construction near 
LIBERTY's Facilities. 
 

2.1. Within ninety (90) days after the approval of this Franchise by the Mayor and City Council, 
LIBERTY shall submit to the Goodyear City Manager a map showing the true and correct location 
of all present installations of LIBERTY within City's rights-of-way. 

 
2.2. The quality of water treatment, transmission, and distribution services, and of the wastewater 

collection, transmission and treatment services provided by LIBERTY shall comply with the 
requirements of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality, Arizona Corporation Commission, Arizona Department of Health 
Services, and the Maricopa County Department of Environmental Health Services. 

 
2.3. All construction in such public rights-of-way under this Franchise shall be performed in 

accordance with applicable City Engineering Design Standards & Policies and polices adopted by 



Page 4 of 18 
 

the Maricopa Association of Governments. Before LIBERTY makes any major installations in the 
public rights-of-way, LIBERTY shall submit to City for approval any applicable permit applications 
and a map showing the location of such proposed installations. City and LIBERTY agree and 
understand that there may be instances when LIBERTY is required to make repairs that are of an 
emergency nature. LIBERTY shall notify City prior to such repairs, to the extent practicable, and 
shall obtain the necessary permits in a reasonable time after notification, showing the work 
performed in the public rights-of-way. In this case, telephone notification of the repair will be 
given as soon as practicable to the contact person designated by City. 
 
(i) Notwithstanding anything else contained in this provision, LIBERTY will make best efforts 

to address any emergencies within 24 hours of being notified that such emergency exists; 
with LIBERTY permitted to address such emergencies with the use of temporary patches 
with metal plates so that any street closures will be released as soon as practicable.   
Should LIBERTY determine, in consultation with City, that such emergency may take more 
than 24 hours to address, LIBERTY will notify City of such, and provide a mutually 
agreeable timeframe by which the emergency will be addressed to City’s satisfaction.  

 
2.4. If City undertakes, either directly or through a contractor, any construction project adjacent to 

or near LIBERTY's facilities operated pursuant to this Franchise and for the relocation of which 
City is required hereunder to pay, City shall include in all such construction specifications, bids, 
and contracts a requirement that as part of the cost of the project, the contractor or 
contractor's designee obtain from LIBERTY the temporary or permanent removal, relocation and 
barricading of equipment, and depressurization of LIBERTY's facilities or equipment, all as 
necessary to avoid the creation of an unsafe condition in view of the equipment to be utilized or 
the methods of construction to be followed by the contractor. 

 
2.5. LIBERTY shall for all projects constructed after the date of this agreement and upon written 

request of the City, provide on a project-by-project basis As-Built drawings of LIBERTY facilities 
installed within the City right-of-way.  As-Built drawings refer to facility drawings maintained in 
LIBERTY’s computer aided design, geographical information system, or any equivalent system. 
 

3.  Construction and Relocation of LIBERTY’s Facilities. 

 
3.1. All facilities installed or constructed pursuant to this Franchise shall be located or relocated and 

erected as to minimize the interference with traffic or other authorized use, over, under, or 
through the public right-of-way. Those phases of construction of LIBERTY's facilities relating to 
traffic control, backfilling, compaction, and paving, as well as location or relocation of facilities 
provided for herein, shall be subject to applicable regulation by the City Council. LIBERTY shall 
keep accurate records of the location of all facilities in the public right-of-way and furnish them 
to City upon request. Upon completion of new construction or relocation of underground 
facilities in the public right-of-way, LIBERTY shall provide City with corrected drawings showing 
the actual location of the underground facilities in those cases where the actual location differs 
significantly from the proposed location approved in the permit plans. 



Page 5 of 18 
 

 
3.2. Upon reasonable notice by City of the proposed paving or expansion of a Public Right-of-Way, 

LIBERTY shall review the City’s proposed paving plan and, if warranted in LIBERTY’s judgment, 
extend or replace its facilities in order to reasonably avoid the need to subsequently cut the 
paved public right-of-way. 

 
3.3. LIBERTY will bear the entire cost of relocating any of LIBERTY's facilities, the relocation of which 

is necessitated by the construction of improvements by, or on behalf of, City in furtherance of a 
governmental function. 

 
3.4. If City requires LIBERTY to relocate LIBERTY's facilities that are located in private easements or 

private rights-of-way from which the facilities must be relocated, or relocate facilities installed 
by LIBERTY in locations prior to such locations becoming a City of Goodyear road or other City 
right-of-way then the entire cost of relocating LIBERTY's facilities, including the cost of 
purchasing a new private easement or right-of-way, if necessary, shall be borne by City. City 
shall not be obligated to bear such costs if, prior to City's acquisition of such right-of-way, either, 
(i.) LIBERTY subordinated its easement or right-of-way in such a manner that the person from 
whom City acquired the right-of-way would not have been obligated to bear any costs of such 
relocation, or (ii.) LIBERTY did not in fact obtain such easement or right-of-way. 

 
3.5. If relocation of any of LIBERTY’s facilities is required or requested due to the actions or inactions 

of any party other than the City, the third party shall be responsible for the cost of such 
relocation. 

 
3.6. City and LIBERTY agree that City is not a party to disputes among permittees or other interested 

parties using the public rights-of-way. 
 
3.7. LIBERTY’s operation of a potable water delivery system and a wastewater collection, treatment, 

and disposal system is subject to Arizona law regarding prior rights. City reserves its prior 
superior rights to use the public right-of-way and City property, including the surface areas, for 
all public purposes. Provided that anything contained herein does not interfere with LIBERTY's 
obligation to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater service, any privilege claimed 
under this Franchise by LIBERTY in any public right-of-way or other public property is 
subordinate to any: (a) prior or subsequent lawful occupancy or use thereof by City or any other 
governmental entity; (b) prior lawful occupancy or use thereof by any other person or entity; 
and (c) prior easements therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing subordination provision, 
nothing herein extinguishes or otherwise interferes with property rights established 
independently of this Franchise. When the City uses its prior superior right to the public rights-
of-way, or other City property, LIBERTY shall move its property that is located in the public right-
of-way or on other City property at its own cost, to such location as City directs. 

 
3.8. If the City, at its expense, has previously required LIBERTY to relocate its facilities in a particular 

area, and LIBERTY desires to again relocate these facilities, LIBERTY shall bear the entire cost of 
such relocation. 



Page 6 of 18 
 

 
3.9. If City relocates and/or participates in the cost of relocating LIBERTY's facilities for any reason, 

the cost of relocation to City shall not include any additional cost resulting from any upgrade or 
improvement of LIBERTY 's facilities as they existed prior to relocation. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if LIBERTY requests, in connection with any such relocation by City, any upgrade or 
improvement of the affected LIBERTY 's facilities, City will in good faith consider such request, 
subject in each case to LIBERTY 's agreement to pay for the actual, additional costs up front prior 
to any upgrade or improvement for the requested upgrade or improvement. City will deliver to 
LIBERTY documentation reasonably satisfactory to LIBERTY to evidence the actual, additional 
cost of such upgrades and improvements. In no event shall City be responsible for considering or 
undertaking an upgrade or improvement to any of LIBERTY facilities being relocated by City if 
doing so would adversely affect City’s schedules for completion. 

 
3.10. All underground abandoned lines shall continue to remain the property of LIBERTY, unless 

LIBERTY specifically acknowledges otherwise to the Goodyear City Engineer, and such is 
accepted by City. LIBERTY shall remove, at LIBERTY 's sole cost, abandoned lines at the request 
of City when required to facilitate construction of any municipal project or as City determines is 
reasonably necessary to protect public health and safety. LIBERTY may contract with City 
contractor for such removal. Prior to removal of any abandoned lines, LIBERTY shall notify City 
of its intent to remove abandoned lines and offer possession of said lines to City. LIBERTY shall 
identify the location of any known abandoned lines as they exist at the time this Franchise is 
granted through recognized industry means. LIBERTY shall further identify the location of any 
lines that become abandoned during the term of this Franchise in a like manner. 

 
3.11. Subject to the provisions of this section regarding the cost of relocation of LIBERTY's facilities, 

LIBERTY's right to retain its facilities in their original location is subject to the paramount right of 
City to use its public rights-of-way for all permitted purposes, including without limitation, to 
carry out its governmental functions. All functions of City, which are not specifically determined 
by law to be proprietary, are governmental. City’s permitted purposes shall include, but in no 
way shall be limited the following: 

(i) Any and all improvement to City streets, alleys, and avenues; 
(ii) Establishing and maintaining sanitary sewers, storm drains, drainage structures, and 

related facilities; 
(iii) Establishing and maintaining parks, parkways, pedestrian malls, or grass, shrubs, 

trees, and other vegetation for the purpose of landscaping any street or public 
property; 

(iv) Providing fire protection and public safety functions; 
(v) Collection and disposal of garbage, solid waste, bulk trash and recyclables; 

(vi) Providing public transportation; 
(vii) Operating City utilities; 

(viii) Any structures for public purposes deemed appropriate by the Mayor and Council of 
City; 

(ix) Any structure for any purpose, whether governmental or proprietary, which City is 
authorized to construct and/or maintain. 



Page 7 of 18 
 

 
3.12. Where City’s facilities or other facilities occupying a right-of-way under authority of a City 

permit or license are already located in the right-of-way and a conflict between LIBERTY’s 
potential facilities and the existing facilities can only be resolved expeditiously as determined by 
the Goodyear City Engineer by relocating the existing City or permittee facilities, LIBERTY shall 
bear the entire cost of relocating the existing facilities, irrespective of the function they served. 
 

4. Restoration of Rights of Way. 
 

4.1. Whenever LIBERTY shall cause any work, opening, or alteration whatsoever to be made for any 
purpose in any City public right-of- way, the work shall be completed with due diligence within a 
reasonably prompt time; and LIBERTY shall, upon completion of such work, restore the 
disturbed property to the same or a substantially similar condition as it was prior to such 
openings or alteration, and  LIBERTY shall provide any barricades, signing, rerouting of traffic, or 
other actions which City shall consider necessary or desirable in the interest of public safety 
during any such opening or alteration within the public right-of-way. 
 

(1) To the extent LIBERTY is undertaking any operations and maintenance or capital 
improvement projects on a permanent (i.e., non-emergency) basis, LIBERTY will consult 
and coordinate with City on a regular basis to best ensure that any rights-of-way that have 
been disturbed as the result of such work have been completely restored to the City’s 
satisfaction, and pursuant to a mutually-agreeable schedule for restoration of such rights-
of-way.   LIBERTY will comply with all applicable traffic control regulations in effect, 
including placement of updated barricade permits where required or as requested by City. 

 
4.2. If LIBERTY causes damage to pavement, sidewalks, driveways, landscaping, or other property 

during construction, installation, or repair of its facilities, LIBERTY or its authorized agent shall 
replace and restore such places as nearly as possible to its original condition that existed before 
the damage occurred. If the repair, replacement or restoration cannot replicate the site's 
original condition, LIBERTY shall return the site to a condition that approximates the original 
condition and compensate the City for any difference. All repair and restoration necessary to 
meet the requirements set forth in this Section shall be at LIBERTY's expense and shall be 
conducted in a manner acceptable to the City, in its sole discretion. LIBERTY agrees to restore 
pavement or sidewalks after any pavement or sidewalk cuts done by LIBERTY. 

 
4.3. In addition to any indemnity obligation under this Franchise, whenever the installation, use, 

maintenance, removal, or relocation of any of LIBERTY facilities are required or permitted 
hereunder, and such installation, removal, or relocation damages or disturbs the surface or 
subsurface of any pavement, sidewalk, driveway, landscaping, or other public improvement or 
public property during construction, installation, or repair of its facilities, however such damage 
or disturbance was caused, LIBERTY,  its authorized agent shall restore the surface or subsurface 
of the right-of-way or public property and/or will replace the surface, subsurface and/or public 
improvement thereon, therein, or thereunder, as nearly as possible to its original condition that 
existed before the damage occurred and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Goodyear City 



Page 8 of 18 
 

Engineer. If the repair, replacement or restoration cannot replicate the site's original condition, 
LIBERTY shall return the site to a condition that approximates the original condition and 
compensate the City for any difference. All repair and restoration necessary to meet the 
requirements set forth in this Section shall be at LIBERTY’s expense and shall be conducted in a 
manner acceptable to the City, in its sole discretion. LIBERTY agrees to restore pavement or 
sidewalks after any pavement or sidewalk cuts done by LIBERTY. If LIBERTY does not repair the 
damage or disturbance as required, then City shall have the option, upon ten (10) business days 
prior written notice to LIBERTY, to perform or cause to be performed such reasonable and 
necessary work on behalf of LIBERTY and to charge LIBERTY for the proposed costs to be 
incurred or the actual costs incurred by City at City's standard rates plus a ten-percent (10%) 
administration fee. 

 
4.4. In the event of a public emergency, the City shall have the right to immediately perform, 

without prior written notice to LIBERTY, such reasonable and necessary work on behalf of 
LIBERTY to repair and return public property to a safe and satisfactory condition in accordance 
with applicable laws, normal wear and tear excepted, reasonably satisfactory to the Goodyear 
City Engineer. The City shall provide written notice to LIBERTY of the repairs as soon as 
practicable after the work has begun. LIBERTY agrees that any damaged City-owned conduit or 
fiber must be replaced or repaired and restored with new or like-new materials. If the City needs 
to perform any part of the necessary repairs, relocation and/or removal work, it shall be entitled 
to seek payment for such repairs and/or relocation and/or removal costs from LIBERTY. Upon 
the receipt of a demand for payment by City, LIBERTY shall reimburse City within thirty (30) days 
for such costs in accordance with the City's fee schedule in place at the time the work is 
performed plus a ten percent (10%) administration fee. In the event of a public emergency, 
neither the City nor any agent, contractor or employee of the City shall be liable to LIBERTY or its 
contractors or its customers or other third parties for any harm so caused to them by the 
reasonable actions of the City or its agents, contractors or employees in reasonably responding 
to such public emergency. When practical and if possible, City will consult with LIBERTY in 
advance to assess the necessity of such actions and to minimize, to the extent practical under 
the circumstances, damage to and disruption of either the public property involved or the 
LIBERTY' s facilities involved. 

 
4.5. If any of LIBERTY's facilities or activities present any immediate hazard or impediment to the 

public, to the City, to other City improvements or activities within or outside of the Route, or to 
City's ability to safely and conveniently operate the right-of-way or perform City's utility, public 
safety and/or other public health, safety and welfare functions, then LIBERTY shall immediately 
remedy the hazard, comply with City's request to secure the route area, and otherwise 
cooperate with City at no expense to City to remove any such hazard or impediment. 
 
 

5. Indemnification and Insurance. 
 

5.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, LIBERTY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
City and any of its departments, agencies, officers, employees, elected officials, and 



Page 9 of 18 
 

representatives from all damages, claims, or liabilities (including without limitation: personal 
injury, death, and property damage) and expenses (including attorney’s fees) only to the extent 
arising out of, or resulting from: (i) LIBERTY’s performance or failure to perform the services 
required of LIBERTY under the terms of this Franchise; (ii) the negligent or intentional acts, 
errors, mistakes, or omissions, of LIBERTY, its officers, employees, or others for whose acts that 
LIBERTY may be legally liable; (iii) any injury or damage to any third-party or third-party property 
from the performance, work, and/or exercise of this Franchise by LIBERTY; or (iv) the work 
performed by LIBERTY, its officers, employees, or others for whose acts that LIBERTY may be 
legally liable under this Franchise, including without limitation, any claims or litigation by third-
parties.  This indemnity clause shall apply solely to the extent such injury to any person or 
property is caused by the actions or inactions of LIBERTY.  This indemnification clause shall not 
apply to the extent any such claim and/or injury is caused by the actions or inactions of the City, 
any contractors, subcontractors, consultants or other parties retained by the City, or any other 
third party not affiliated with LIBERTY.  

 
5.2. During the term of this Franchise, and for such other term that any claims may be brought, 

LIBERTY shall maintain in full force and effect, at no cost or expense to the City, commercial 
general liability insurance in the amount of five million U.S. dollars ($5,000,000) combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage. The City shall be designated as an additional named 
insured. Such insurance will not be cancelable or materially modified except upon thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City. Annually, LIBERTY shall provide a certificate of insurance 
showing evidence of the coverage required by this Section. LIBERTY may self-insure the above- 
described- policy coverages if LIBERTY or its parent is of sufficient financial standing to provide 
such insurance. Should LIBERTY elect to self-insure, the City in its sole discretion may accept or 
reject LIBERTY's proposal to self-insure. 

 
5.3. LIBERTY shall secure and maintain during the term of this Franchise, insurance coverage which 

shall include statutory workers’ compensation, comprehensive general, and automobile liability, 
all including contractual liability assumed by the insured. The comprehensive general and 
automobile limits shall be no less than five million U.S. dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence 
(combined single limit), including bodily injury and property damage, and in an amount not less 
than five million U.S. dollars ($5,000,000) annual aggregate for each personal injury liability and 
products-completed operations. City shall be named as an additional named insured with 
respect to all operations of the insured and LIBERTY’s insurance policy shall contain a waiver of 
subrogation against City, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, officers, officials, 
agents, and employees for losses arising from the service provided by or on behalf of LIBERTY in 
the event the LIBERTY is found to be negligent. Insurance coverage must be provided by an 
insurance company allowed to conduct business in Arizona and rated A-VII or better by AM 
Best’s Insurance Rating. Subsequently, a certificate of insurance, signed by an authorized 
representative of the insurer with thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation, material modification, 
or non-renewal, and all required endorsements shall be presented a minimum of five (5) days 
after the date of expiration of the policy term. 

 



Page 10 of 18 
 

5.4. LIBERTY shall submit to Goodyear City Clerk's office at 1900 N. Civic Square Goodyear AZ 85395, 
a certificate of insurance, evidencing the coverage and limits stated in the foregoing paragraph 
within ten (10) days of award of this Franchise. Insurance evidenced by the certificate shall not 
expire, be cancelled, nor non-renewed without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
Goodyear City Clerk's Office. A statement to that effect must appear on the face of the 
certificate, and certificate shall be signed by a person authorized to bind the insurer. 
 

6. Franchise Fee. 
 

6.1. LIBERTY agrees to pay City, as consideration of the grant of this Franchise, a sum equal to three 
percent (3%) of the Gross Receipts, as defined below, from the sale by LIBERTY of water within 
the Franchised Area, and from the collection and/or treatment of wastewater within the 
Franchised Area as shown by LIBERTY's billing records (the "Franchise Fee"). The Franchise Fee 
shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after the end of each of the City’s fiscal quarters 
and shall be in addition to all fees or charges for permits issued for the construction of LIBERTY's 
facilities hereunder or for the inspection thereof within the same fiscal quarter. LIBERTY shall 
reduce the Franchise Fee by the amount LIBERTY has paid to the City for any permits issued in 
the same fiscal quarter for the installation or construction of LIBERTY’s facilities, however in no 
event shall LIBERTY receive a reimbursement of fees paid if that amount is over and above any 
quarterly Franchise Fee paid. Any reduction in payment of the Franchise Fee for the costs of 
permits issued by the City are required to be itemized and labeled with the associated permit 
numbers issued by the City. If at any time City requests LIBERTY to match a greater franchise fee 
paid to a municipality within the State of Arizona, then LIBERTY may request that all terms and 
conditions contained within the franchise agreement that is applicable to the other such 
municipality be fully adopted by City in this Franchise.  

 
6.2. "Gross Receipts" or "Gross Revenues" means all cash, credits, property of any kind or nature, or 

other consideration that is received directly or indirectly by LIBERTY, with the exception of any 
Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District recharge credits, or any, firm or 
corporation in which LIBERTY has a financial interest or that has a financial interest in LIBERTY 
and that is derived in whole or in part from LIBERTY's provision of water services to its end-use 
customers within the franchise boundaries in the City. 

 

6.3. For the purpose of verifying the quarterly amount payable hereunder, the books and records of 
LIBERTY shall be subject to inspection by duly authorized officers or representatives of City upon 
sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to LIBERTY following the payment of each quarterly 
Franchise Fee.  

6.4. The amount payable under the Franchise Fee shall not be reduced by, and is in addition to, the 
payment of any general ad valorem taxes, assessments for special improvements, general sales 
or transaction privilege license taxes or any similar general sales or transaction privilege license 
taxes or any similar general tax or level assessed or levied by City or any other governmental 
unit with jurisdiction. 

 



Page 11 of 18 
 

7. Franchise Fee Audit. 
 

7.1. Upon written notice to LIBERTY, City may inspect LIBERTY’s records of previous annual or 
quarterly gross revenues, and City shall have the right to audit any amounts determined to be 
payable under this Franchise; provided, however, that such audit must take place within thirty-
six (36) months following the close of LIBERTY’s fiscal year for which the audit is desired. All 
audit costs shall be borne by City. 

 
7.2. Upon completion of an audit, City shall provide LIBERTY with written notice including a copy of 

the audit report and setting forth any additional amounts due to City identified in the audit. 
LIBERTY shall pay any deficiency within thirty (30) days following such written notice. If a City 
audit shows overpayments, City shall promptly pay LIBERTY the overpaid amount. 

 
7.3. If LIBERTY determines in an internal audit that it overpaid Franchise Fees, LIBERTY may request a 

reduction in the following quarterly Franchise Fee payment(s) by submitting a written claim for 
reduction for the overpaid Franchise Fees along with the audit report and calculations detailing 
the overpayment. A written claim for reduction must identify (i) the specific Franchise Fee 
period(s) involved, including the period of overpayment and any period for which a reduction in 
payment is sought, (ii) the itemized Franchise Fee made to City for the associated period (iii) any 
and all itemized fees paid to City for permits that reduced the Franchise Fee and (iv) the dollar 
amount of the reduction requested. No reduction shall be allowed for those Franchise Fees paid 
more than thirty-six (36) months following the close of the City’s fiscal year for which a 
reduction is sought. 

 
7.4. In no event shall interest accrue or LIBERTY be entitled to interest or late fees on overpaid 

amounts. 
 

8. Term. 
 

8.1. The Effective Date of this Franchise shall be the first day of the calendar month immediately 
following the calendar month in which this Franchise is approved by a majority vote of the 
qualified voters of the City of Goodyear. This Franchise shall continue and exist for a period of 
twenty- five (25) years from the Effective Date. 

 
8.2. Unless terminated earlier by written agreement of the parties this Franchise will expire on the 

twenty-fifth (25th) anniversary of the Effective Date. LIBERTY shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local laws and ordinances, including those that may come into being, in its exercise of 
Franchise rights during the term of this Franchise. 

 
8.3. LIBERTY shall negotiate in good faith any request by City to amend this Franchise. This Franchise 

may only be modified by a written amendment signed by persons duly authorized to enter into 
contracts on behalf of City and LIBERTY. 
 

9. Default and Dispute Resolution. 



Page 12 of 18 
 

  
9.1. Failure or unreasonable delay by LIBERTY or City to perform any term or provision of this 

Franchise for a period of ten (10) City business days after written notice thereof from the other 
party shall constitute a default under this Franchise. If the default is of a nature, which is not 
capable of being cured within ten (10) City business days, the cure shall be commenced within 
such period, and diligently pursued to completion. The notice shall specify the nature of the 
alleged default and the manner in which the default may be satisfactorily cured. In the event of 
a default hereunder by LIBERTY or City, the non-defaulting party shall only be entitled to the 
remedies of specific performance or injunction. No monetary damages may be sought from or 
awarded against either LIBERTY or City, except as may otherwise be expressly permitted in this 
Franchise. 

   
9.2. To further the cooperation of the parties in implementing this Franchise, City and LIBERTY each 

shall designate and appoint a representative to act as a liaison between City and its various 
departments and LIBERTY. The initial representative for City (the "City Representative") shall be 
the Goodyear City Manager or their designee, the initial representative for LIBERTY shall be 
identified by LIBERTY from time to time (the "LIBERTY Representative"). The representatives 
shall be available at all reasonable times to discuss and review the performance of the Parties 
and the development of property. 
 

(1) In case of a default, as that term is defined in Section 9.1, by LIBERTY, LIBERTY will maintain 
an open line of communication and dialogue with City as to its attempts to cure the default 
and an estimated timeframe by which City can expect such default to be cured.  The LIBERTY 
Representative will be a LIBERTY employee at least at the level of LIBERTY’s Director of 
Operations for the district that covers all systems and facilities within the incorporated 
boundaries of City.  To the extent the City believes that it is not receiving satisfactory 
responses or commitment to a particular default, City is authorized to contact LIBERTY’s 
Vice President of Arizona Operations, to which that individual will then serve as the LIBERTY 
Representative for the limited purposes of addressing such concerns for that particular 
default only, and where the LIBERTY Representative will revert back to the current designee 
once that particular default is addressed to the satisfaction of both Parties.   

 
9.3. Any and all controversies, claims, or disputes that arise out of or relate to this Franchise, or the 

breach thereof, and if the controversy, claim, or dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, 
the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the controversy, claim, or dispute by 
mediation, formal or informal, before resorting to binding arbitration or litigation filed in a court 
of competent jurisdiction applying Arizona law located in Maricopa County, Arizona. 
 

9.4. In the event that LIBERTY and City cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven 
(7) days, either LIBERTY or City may request a presiding judge of the Superior Court to assign a 
mediator from a list of mediators maintained by the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool. 
 
 
 



Page 13 of 18 
 

10. Non-Exclusive. 
  

10.1. This Franchise is not exclusive, and nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent City 
from granting other like or similar grants or privileges to any other person, firm, or corporation. 
 

11. Transfer of Franchise. 
 

11.1. The right, privilege, and franchise hereby granted may be transferred in whole or in part by 
LIBERTY, its successors and assigns, to any public service corporation approved by the 
Commission to provide public utility water or wastewater services within the Franchised Area 
and upon payment of an appropriate transfer fee to City to reimburse City for any reasonable 
costs it incurs in processing the transfer. No other assignment of any rights, privileges or 
franchise hereby granted may be made without the prior written consent of both the City 
Council and the Commission and payment of an appropriate transfer fee to City to reimburse 
City for any reasonable costs it incurs in processing the transfer. The City Council's consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. No consent shall be required in 
connection with an assignment made as security pursuant to a mortgage or deed of trust or in 
connection with subsequent transfer made pursuant to any such instrument. 
 

12. Condemnation Rights Reserved by City. 
 

12.1. City reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn any water plant, equipment, 
properties, facilities and/or distribution facilities of LIBERTY within the corporate limits or any 
additions and annexations thereto, as provided by law. 
 

12.2. In the event of a purchase of LIBERTY, or under the exercises of eminent domain, this Franchise 
shall be construed to have no value for purposes of establishing the value of LIBERTY. 
 

13. Title to Facilities, Use of Easements. 
 

13.1. Title to all water and wastewater utility facilities wherever situated on public grounds or in 
easements for the provision of water and wastewater public utility services acquired or installed 
by LIBERTY or its agents or contractors within its service territory shall be and remain property 
of LIBERTY, its successors, or assigns. 

 
13.2. Nothing contained in this Franchise shall be construed as preventing, diminishing, or restricting 

LIBERTY from using for public utility purposes any easement shown on any plat or plats of any 
portion of City before or hereafter platted or recorded that has been or may hereafter be 
created, granted, or dedicated for public utility purposes by any person, firm, or corporation. 
The costs associated with such use shall be borne by LIBERTY. 

14. Applicable Laws and Regulations. 
 

14.1. LIBERTY is responsible to adhere to all applicable Federal and State laws, municipal ordinances, 
and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over LIBERTY's activities in the 



Page 14 of 18 
 

rights-of-way, including but not limited to, storm water regulations (MS4), US Army Corps of 
Engineers permitting, Americans with Disabilities Act, and appropriate traffic control measures. 
 

15. Conflict of Interest. 
 

15.1. This Franchise shall be subject to cancellation pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §38- 511 in 
the event of a conflict of interest. 
 

16. Notices. 
 

16.1. All notices required to be given to either party shall be sent or given as follows to the following 
addresses: 

To City:   City of Goodyear, Arizona 
   Goodyear, AZ 85395 
   1900 North Civic Square 
   Attn: City Manager 
 
With a copy to:  City of Goodyear City Attorney 
   1900 North Civic Square 
   Goodyear, AZ 85395 
 
To LIBERTY:  LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP. 

14920 West Camelback Road 
Litchfield Park, AZ, 85340 

17. Arizona State Law to Govern. 
 

17.1. The provisions of this Franchise shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Arizona. 
 

18. LIBERTY’S Representations and Warranties. 
 

18.1. LIBERTY represents and warrants that it has the power and authority to enter into this Franchise 
by and through the representative who has signed this Franchise on its behalf, and that it has 
the power and ability to do all the acts required of it by this Franchise. 

 
18.2. LIBERTY has not misrepresented or omitted material facts, has not accepted this Franchise with 

intent to act contrary to the provisions herein, and represents and warrants that, as long as it 
operates its utility system, it will be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise or any 
subsequently issued license. 

 
18.3. LIBERTY further acknowledges that it was represented throughout the negotiations of this 

Franchise by its own attorneys and had opportunity to consult with its own attorneys about its 
rights and obligations regarding this Franchise Agreement.  



Page 15 of 18 
 

 
18.4. LIBERTY, as a public service corporation regulated by the Arizona Corporation Commission, is 

obligated to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater service to all its customers in 
accordance with Arizona law, including those customers residing or doing business within the 
incorporated boundaries of City.  LIBERTY commits to providing at least the same level of water 
and wastewater service to its customers located within City as City provides to its water and 
wastewater customers.  LIBERTY understands and acknowledges that, as a regulated entity, City, 
its residents or businesses may file a complaint with the Arizona Corporation Commission 
alleging inadequate service, in accordance with Commission rules and regulations and Arizona 
law, including under A.R.S. § 40-246; provide however, that City understands and agrees that 
this provision does not give rise to any independent cause of action not otherwise authorized 
under Arizona law. 
 

19. Severability. 
 

19.1. If any section, paragraph, clause, phrase or provision of the franchise shall be adjudged invalid 
or unconstitutional, other than Section 7 or any portion thereof, the same shall not affect the 
validity of the Franchise as a whole or any part of the provisions hereof other than the part so 
adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional. If Section 7 shall be adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional in whole or in part by a final judgment, the Franchise shall immediately 
terminate and shall be of no further force or effect. 
 

20. Force Majeure.  
 

20.1. LIBERTY and City shall not be held in default under, or in noncompliance with, the provisions of 
this Franchise, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to noncompliance or default 
(including termination, cancellation, or revocation of this Franchise) where such alleged 
noncompliance or default occurred or was caused by an act of God, an act or omission of 
governmental military or civilian authority, strike or lockout, riot, epidemic or quarantine, war, 
earthquake, fire, flood, tidal wave, unusually severe rain, wind, or snow storm, hurricane, 
tornado or other catastrophic act of nature, labor disputes, terrorist acts, governmental, 
administrative or judicial order or regulation, by a federal, state, and/or local directive, order, or 
similar requirement, or other circumstances that could not have been avoided through 
LIBERTY's exercise of reasonable care, prudence and diligence, provided that one party has 
provided the other party with at least seventy-two (72) hours’ written notice of such delay or 
nonperformance.  
 

20.2. Furthermore, the City and LIBERTY hereby agree that it is not the City's intention to subject 
LIBERTY to penalties, fines, forfeitures, or revocation of the Franchise for immaterial breaches or 
violations of this Franchise Agreement. "Immaterial" breaches or violations of this Agreement 
may include, but are not limited to instances or for matters: (i) where a violation or a breach by 
LIBERTY of the Franchise was a good faith error that resulted in minimal or no negative impact 
on the Citizens (i.e., a resident or inhabitant) within the Franchised Area; (ii) where strict 



Page 16 of 18 
 

performance with the terms of the Franchise would result in practical difficulties and hardship 
to LIBERTY that outweigh the benefit to be derived by the City and/or Citizens. 
 

21. Expiration. 
  

21.1. City and LIBERTY hereby expressly agree that the following provision shall survive the 
termination or expiration of this Franchise; upon the termination or expiration of the Franchise, 
if LIBERTY shall not have acquired and accepted an extension or renewal hereof, LIBERTY may 
remove their facilities and systems within the Franchised Area or, at LIBERTY’s option, may 
continue operating LIBERTY’s facilities and systems within the Franchised Area under the same 
terms and conditions contained herein, but LIBERTY shall be required to obtain proper permits 
each time LIBERTY makes additional extensions upon, over, along, across, and under the public 
right-of-way within the City of Goodyear unless or until such time as a new franchise is obtained 
or the systems and facilities are removed or are acquired by City through the exercise of its 
powers of eminent domain. 
 

22. Confidentiality. 
 

22.1. Protection of Confidential Information.  Subject to the Arizona Public Records Law (A.R.S. § 39-
121 et seq.), to the fullest extent permitted by law, the City agrees to treat on a confidential 
basis any Confidential Information disclosed by LIBERTY to the City.  The City shall not use the 
Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever other than in connection with its rights 
and obligations under this Franchise.  The City shall safeguard the Confidential Information 
using measures that are equal to the measures used to safeguard its own confidential 
information of comparable value, but in no event, shall the City exercise less than reasonable 
care. 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  



Page 17 of 18 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF GOODYEAR, an Arizona municipal 
corporation  
 
 
By:       
Wynette Reed 
City Manager      
Date:      

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA 
County of Maricopa  
 

On this ________ day of ____________________, 20__, before me personally appeared 
Wynette Reed, the City Manager for the City of Goodyear, an Arizona municipal corporation, for 
and on behalf thereof, whose identity was proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person who he or she claims to be, and acknowledged that he or she signed the 
above/attached document.   
 
 
[Affix notary seal here] 

 
  

      Notary Public 
  



Page 18 of 18 
 

LIBERTY: 
 
LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND 
SEWER) CORP., 
an Arizona corporation 

By: ___________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
Date: _________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA 
County of ______________  
 
On this ________ day of ____________________, 20___, before me personally appeared 
_________________________  as the _________________________ of Liberty Utilities 
(Litchfield Park Water and Sewer) Corp., an Arizona corporation, for and on behalf thereof, 
whose identity was proven to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who he 
or she claims to be, and acknowledged that he or she signed the above/attached document.   
 
 
[Affix notary seal here] 

__________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 



ITEM #: 11. 
DATE: 11/04/2024
AI #:2272

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: CALL OF SPECIAL ELECTION - MAY 20, 2025

 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Roric Massey, City Attorney

SUMMARY
It is anticipated that City Council will adopt the City Charter changes and approve the two
franchise agreements and refer them to the voters earlier on the November 4, 2024 agenda. 
This Call of Election establishes the election date for a Special Election and provides
additional direction and authorization for the election.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2427 CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR MAY 20,
2025; PROVIDING NOTICE OF A SPECIAL ELECTION; DESIGNATING THE DATE THAT
VOTER REGISTRATION CLOSES; DESIGNATING THE PLACE AND BEGINNING AND
ENDING DATES TO ACCEPT ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST THE QUESTIONS;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO ENTER INTO ALL
AGREEMENTS TO EFFECTUATE ELECTION SERVICES; AND ORDERING THE CITY
CLERK TO PUBLISH THE NOTICE OF ELECTION.  (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

FISCAL IMPACT
Costs for the May 20, 2025 Special Election are included in the FY2025 budget adopted by
City Council.  The city contracts with Maricopa County Elections to provide election services at
a rate of $2.12 per voter.  Goodyear currently has 62,786 voters, bringing the estimate of costs
to approximately $134,000 for county fees.  An additional $35,000 is estimated for the publicity
pamphlet, which brings the total estimate of costs to $169,000 for the Special Election.  The
two franchisees will each reimburse the city for one third of these costs.



BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A notice of a nonpartisan election is required when it is not a regular candidate election. 
Action taken earlier this evening referred multiple questions to the voters which necessitates
this Call of Election in compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes §16-228 and provides the
following: 

Date and Purpose of Election: May 20, 2025, referring changes to the City Charter
and two franchise agreements to the voters
Format: All-Mail Ballot
Last day to register: April 21, 2025
Ballots to be mailed: April 23, 2025
Ballot Drop Box: Available at City Hall, 1900 N Civic Square, beginning April 23, 2025
Ballot Replacement Site: Available at City Hall, 1900 N Civic Square, beginning Monday,
May 12, 2025
Polling Place: There shall be no polling places
All ballots to be received by Maricopa County Elections: No later than 7 p.m. on
Tuesday, May 20, 2025
Qualification of electors: Only qualified electors of the City of Goodyear shall be
permitted to vote
Publicity Pamphlet: Arguments for and against the questions may be filed with the City
Clerk between December 1, 2024, and February 19, 2025, in compliance with the
conditions set forth in Exhibit B of the Resolution

Attachments
Resolution 2024-2427 with Exhibits 



Resolution No. 2024-2427 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2427 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR MAY 20, 2025; PROVIDING 
NOTICE OF A SPECIAL ELECTION; DESIGNATING THE DATE THAT VOTER 
REGISTRATION CLOSES; DESIGNATING THE PLACE AND BEGINNING AND ENDING 
DATES TO ACCEPT ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGANST THE QUESTIONS; AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO ENTER INTO ALL AGREEMENTS TO 
EFFECTUATE ELECTION SERVICES; AND ORDERING THE CITY CLERK TO PUBLISH THE 
NOTICE OF ELECTION. 
… 
WHEREAS, the Goodyear City Council has referred to the voters of the city two franchise 
agreements and changes to the City Charter;  
 
WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statutes §16-227 requires a Call of Election for a non-partisan 
Special Election; and 
 
WHEREAS, dates have been established to comply with the requirements of a Special Election. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 2. 
 
 
 
SECTION 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 4. 
 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 5. 
 
 

DESIGNATION OF SPECIAL ELECTION DATE AND PURPOSE 
The city of Goodyear shall hold a Special Election on May 20, 2025, for the 
purpose of submitting to the qualified voters two franchise agreements and 
changes to the City Charter.  Ballot language is attached as Exhibit A. 
 
DESIGNATING VOTER REGISTRATION DEADLINE 
Goodyear residents wishing to vote in the Special Election shall register with 
Maricopa County Elections no later than April 21, 2025. 
 
ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST BALLOT QUESTIONS 
Arguments supporting or opposing the questions shall be published in the 
publicity pamphlet and shall be filed with the City Clerk between December 1, 
2024, and February 19, 2025, and will be in compliance with the conditions set 
forth in the attached Exhibit B.   
 
DESIGNATING ELECTION FORMAT 
The Special Election shall be an All-Mail Ballot Election.  Ballots will be mailed 
April 23, 2025.  A ballot box for drop-off will be available beginning April 23, 2025, 
at Goodyear City Hall.  A ballot replacement site will be established at Goodyear 
City Hall beginning May 12, 2025.  There will be no polling places.  
 
PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ELECTION 
The City Clerk shall publish Exhibit B – Notice of Election as required by statute. 

SECTION 6. 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND DIRECTION 
A) The Election shall be held, conducted and canvassed in conformity with 

the provisions of the general election laws of the State of Arizona, except 



Resolution No. 2024-2427 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 7. 

as otherwise provided by law or City Charter, and only such persons shall 
be permitted to vote at the Election are qualified electors of the City. 

 
B) The City Manager, or designee, shall enter into any agreements to 

conduct the election or provide other services to effectuate the election 
and elements of the election. 

 
C) The City Attorney is hereby authorized to make non-substantive changes 

to the Resolutions, Ordinances or Exhibits needed to give effect to the 
referral of the offered franchises and City Charter amendments.  
 

D) The City Clerk is hereby further authorized to take all other necessary 
action to facilitate the Election. 

 
E) All expenditures as may be necessary to order, notice, hold and 

administer the Election are hereby authorized, which expenditures shall 
be paid from current operating funds of the City, with appropriate deposits 
and reimbursements made by the franchisees. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
Resolution 2024-2427 shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 

  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-2427 - EXHIBIT A 
 

BALLOT LANGUAGE – SPECIAL ELECTION MAY 20, 2025 
 

QUESTION 1 
 

PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 1.  
 

Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article I Incorporation, Form of Government, Powers of the City, 
Boundaries of the Charter of the City of Goodyear to specify the powers of the 
City in regards to land use planning and regulation.  
 
 
Descriptive Title:   
 
Article I Incorporation, Form of Government, Powers of the City, Boundaries, 
would be amended to specify that the City Council has the power by simple 
majority vote to establish land use and development regulations, zoning 
ordinances, architectural design, and site plan regulations and standards, that 
are consistent with the adopted General Plan.    
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE I OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR BE 
AMENDED TO STATE THE CITY COUNCIL BY SIMPLE MAJORITY VOTE 
HAS THE POWER TO ESTABLISH LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS CONSISTENT WITH ITS ADOPTED GENERAL PLAN, 
ZONING ORDINANCES, AND ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REGULATIONS 
AND STANDARDS? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  



QUESTION 2 
 
PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 2. 

 
Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article II The Council, Section 11 Salaries, generally, Citizen’s 
Compensation Committee on salaries for elected city officials of the Charter of 
the City of Goodyear to amend the procedure for adjustment to City Council 
salaries and benefits.   
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article II The Council, Section 11 Salaries, generally, Citizen’s Compensation 
Committee on salaries for elected city officials would be amended to add Benefits 
to the title, and to amend the procedure and scope of recommendations of the 
Citizen’s Compensation Committee to include both adjustments to salaries and 
benefits and provide that the City Council may only accept or reject that 
recommendation by simple majority vote.  
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE II, SECTION 11 OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR BE AMENDED TO INCLUDE BENEFITS IN THE TITLE AND TO 
AMEND THE PROCEDURE FOR THE CITIZEN’S COMPENSATION 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS AND PROVIDE THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL MAY ACCEPT OR REJECT THAT RECOMMENDATION BY SIMPLE 
MAJORITY VOTE? 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 



QUESTION 3 
 
PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 3. 

 
Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article IV Administrative Departments, Officers and Employees of 
the Charter of the City of Goodyear to amend the administrative process for the 
organization of the various city departments.   
 
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article IV Administrative Departments, Officers and Employees would be 
amended to transfer the authority to create, consolidate, alter or abolish the 
various city departments from the City Council to the City Manager within the 
approved budget authority and employee counts as otherwise approved by the 
City Council.  
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE IV, OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR BE 
AMENDED TO TRANSFER THE AUTHORITY TO CREATE, CONSOLIDATE, 
ALTER OR ABOLISH THE VARIOUS CITY DEPARTMENTS FROM THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO THE CITY MANAGER WITHIN THE APPROVED BUDGETARY 
AND EMPLOYEE COUNTS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 



QUESTION 4 
 
PROPOSED GOODYEAR CHARTER AMENDMENT NO. 4. 
 
Official Title  
 
Amendment of Article VI Finance and Taxation of the Charter of the City of 
Goodyear to codify allowable transaction privilege tax categories and to codify 
currently existing rules related to bond approval and issuance.    
 
Descriptive Title: 
 
Article VI Finance and Taxation would be amended to codify allowable categories 
of municipal transaction privilege tax categories and to further codify existing 
rules regarding the procedure for bond approval and issuance.  
 
 
Ballot Language 
 
SHALL ARTICLE VI FINANCE AND TAXATION, OF THE CHARTER OF THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR BE AMENDED TO CODIFY ALLOWABLE CATEGORIES 
OF MUNICIPAL TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX CATEGORIES AND TO 
FURTHER CODIFY EXISTING RULES REGARDING THE PROCEDURE FOR 
BOND APPROVAL AND ISSUANCE? 
 
 
 
           YES 
 
A YES vote shall have the effect of adopting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.   
 
 
            NO 
 
A NO vote shall have the effect of rejecting the proposed amendment to the City 
Charter.  
 
 
 
 

 



QUESTION 5 
 
PROPOSED EPCOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 

 
OFFICIAL TITLE 
 
SHALL A FRANCHISE BE ENTERED INTO GRANTING TO EPCOR WATER 
ARIZONA INC., ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, 
AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE IN, OVER, 
UNDER, AND ACROSS THOSE PORTIONS OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN 
THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, WATER DISTRIBUTION AND 
WASTEWATER COLLECTION FACILITIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PROVIDING WATER DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION 
SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR AND FUTURE ADDITIONS 
THERETO?  
 
DESCRIPTIVE TITLE 
 
GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO EPCOR WATER ARIZONA INC., FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING WATER DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER 
COLLECTION SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF GOODYEAR FOR WHICH 
THE CITY OF GOODYEAR WILL RECEIVE A FRANCHISE FEE.   
 
A “for the franchise” vote shall have the effect of granting a franchise for water 
distribution and wastewater collection services to EPCOR Water Arizona Inc. 
 
An “against the franchise” vote shall have the effect of denying a franchise for 
water distribution and wastewater collection services to EPCOR Water Arizona 
Inc. 
 

      FOR THE FRANCHISE                  � 

 AGAINST THE FRANCHISE              � 



QUESTION 6 
 
PROPOSED LIBERTY WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 

 
OFFICIAL TITLE 
 
SHALL A FRANCHISE BE ENTERED INTO GRANTING TO LIBERTY 
UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK WATER AND SEWER) CORP., ITS 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND FRANCHISE 
TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE IN, OVER, UNDER, AND 
ACROSS THOSE PORTIONS OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, ARIZONA, WATER DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER 
COLLECTION FACILITIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING WATER 
DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION SERVICES WITHIN THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR AND FUTURE ADDITIONS THERETO? 
 
DESCRIPTIVE TITLE 
 
GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO LIBERTY UTILITIES (LITCHFIELD PARK 
WATER AND SEWER) CORP., FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING WATER 
DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION SERVICES WITHIN THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR FOR WHICH THE CITY OF GOODYEAR WILL RECEIVE 
A FRANCHISE FEE. 
 
A “for the franchise” vote shall have the effect of granting a franchise for water 
distribution and wastewater collection services to Liberty Utilities (Litchfield Park 
Water And Sewer) Corp. 
 
An “against the franchise” vote shall have the effect of denying a franchise for 
water distribution and wastewater collection services to Liberty Utilities (Litchfield 
Park Water And Sewer) Corp. 
 
 

     FOR THE FRANCHISE                   � 

 AGAINST THE FRANCHISE              � 
 



EXHIBIT B 

CALL OF ELECTION 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Goodyear, Arizona, will hold a Special Election as 
an All-Mail Ballot Election as follows: 
 
  Special Election May 20, 2025 
 
 
Questions to be Determined:   
Shall the city of Goodyear make changes to the City Charter, Article I? 
Shall the city of Goodyear make changes to the City Charter, Article II, Section 11? 
Shall the city of Goodyear make changes to the City Charter, Article IV? 
Shall the city of Goodyear make changes to the City Charter, Article VI?  
Shall the city of Goodyear enter into a Franchise Agreement with EPCOR Water and 
Wastewater Utilities? 
Shall the city of Goodyear enter into a Franchise Agreement with Liberty Water and 
Wastewater Utilities? 
 
Arguments for and against the Proposition: That arguments supporting or opposing 
the questions be published in the publicity pamphlet and shall be filed with the City Clerk 
on or before February 19, 2025.  Each argument shall be submitted electronically to 
gyclerk@goodyearaz.gov and a fee of $50 shall be paid for each argument.  Each 
argument shall not exceed 300 words in length and shall contain the original, notarized 
signature of each person sponsoring it.  If the argument is sponsored by an organization, 
it shall contain the sworn statement of two executive officers of the organization or if 
sponsored by a political committee it shall contain the sworn statement of the committee's 
chairman or treasurer. The names of persons and entities submitting written arguments 
shall be included in the publicity pamphlet.  Persons signing the argument shall identify 
themselves by giving their residence address and telephone number, which may not 
appear in the publicity pamphlet, except that the person's city or town and state of 
residence shall appear in the pamphlet.  Any argument that is submitted and that does 
not comply with this subdivision may not be included in the pamphlet. 
 
Voter Registration Deadline:  April 21, 2025 
 
All-Mail Ballot Election:  Ballots will be mailed to every Goodyear qualified voter on 
April 23, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:gyclerk@goodyearaz.gov

	Agenda
	AI-2327_NASCAR Championship Weekend Recognition Proclamation
	AI-2333_APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	       ATT_October 28, 2024 Draft Regular Meeting minutes
	AI-2268_NEW Series 12 Liquor License for Elixir Bar & Restaurant
	       ATT_DLLC Local Governing Body Report
	       ATT_One Mile Report and Evaluation Map
	AI-2304_NEW Series 12 Liquor License for Rubio's Fresh Mexican Grill #225
	       ATT_DLLC Local Governing Body Report
	       ATT_One Mile Report and Evaluation Map
	AI-2285_Bullard Water Campus Pre-Filter Replacement
	AI-2325_Maricopa County Dept. of Emergency Management IGA
	AI-2273_Refer Charter Amendments to the Voters for the May 2025 Special Election
	       ATT_Resolution w-Exhibits 
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2430
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	AI-2264_Stream Data Center annexations - 2nd public hearing
	       ATT_Attachment A - Aerial Photo
	       ATT_Attachment B - Ordinance No. 2024-1619
	1. Ordinance No. 2024-1619
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1619
	____________________________ ______________________________
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney

	1.a SDC I Exhibits

	       ATT_Attachment C - SDC I Certification of Map
	       ATT_Attachment D - Ordinance No. 2024-1620
	2. Ordinance No. 2024-1620
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1620
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	2.a SDC II Exhibits

	       ATT_Attachment E - SDC II Certification of Map
	       ATT_Staff Presentation
	SDC I and SDC II Annexations
	SDC I and SDC II Annexations
	SDC I and SDC II Annexations
	SDC I and SDC II Annexations
	SDC I and SDC II Annexations

	AI-2274_Approve EPCOR Franchise Agreement and Refer to the May 2025 Special Election
	       ATT_Resolution with Exhibit A
	1. RES 2024-2431 Epcor Franchise Agreement 10.14.24 (002)
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2431
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	Ex. A- EPCOR Franchise Agreement (FINAL) 10.2.2024

	AI-2275_Approve Liberty Franchise Agreement and Refer to the May 2025 Special Election
	       ATT_Resolution with Exhibit A
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2432
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	AI-2272_Call of Election - May 20, 2025
	       ATT_Resolution 2024-2427 with Exhibits
	Resolution 2024-2427
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2427
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	Ex A - Ballot Language
	EX B - Call of Election Notice - May 20 2025


